OFFICIAL JOURNALS OF THE MEMBER STATES OF THE EUROPEAN UNION

OFFICIAL JOURNALS OF THE MEMBER STATES OF THE EUROPEAN UNION



MAGYAR HIVATALOS KÖZLÖNYKIADÓ BUDAPEST, 2004 Editors: Dr. Cecília Ivancsics Dr. Béla Pusztai

ISBN 963 9221 58 9

Published by Magyar Hivatalos Közlönykiadó Responsible publisher: *Dr. László Kodela* Director General

Press: Magyar Hivatalos Közlönykiadó Lajosmizsei Nyomdája – 04.1787 Responsible Director: *Norbert Burján* Published in 10,3 (A/5) printed sheet size

CONTENTS

Foreword	7
Acknowledgement	9
Official Journal of the European Union	11
Austria	13
Belgium	15
Cyprus	
Czech Republic	
Denmark	
Estonia	
Finland	25
France	
Germany	
Greece. ´	
Hungary	39
Ireland	
Italy	
LatviaLatvia	
Lithuania	
Luxemburg	51
Malta	
Poland	
Portugal	
Slovakia	
Slovenia	
Spain	
Sweden	
The Netherlands	
United Kingdom	
Appendix	73

FOREWORD

Our Publishing House took on the huge task to prepare a comprehensive review of the Official Journals of the European Union, as well as of the publishing practice of Statutory Instruments in each member country. Our objective was to prepare a background material for an Act on the Operation of the Publishing House which shall hopefully be introduced in the near future in Hungary.

However, our job has been more complex. With the accession to the European Union we have become part of a larger community, what is postulating close connections with the Official Publishing Houses of the other member states and the Official Journal of the Union. Our mutual tasks and similar endeavours require the same.

The Publishing Houses of the legal acts of each country have special status. One evidence of this will be the establishment of the Forum of the Official Journals of the European Union in Vienna in September 2004. Our Publishing House supports the work of this organisation enthusiastically and—as a manifestation of this—we would like to offer this publication, which could not have been completed without the significant help and contribution of our partner institutions. We had the active, ongoing support of the Official Journal of the European Union throughout our work.

Last but not least, we would like to extend our sincere gratitude to the heads and staff of the Publishing Houses.

This volume may be the starting point of a long-lasting and successful co-operation among the Official Publishers of the European Union.

It may be considered as a starting point also in respect that the publication reflects the conditions of April 2004. According to our intentions and those of the participating countries it can be supplemented, extended or elaborated further to meet any possible demands at any time. Our Publisher would be pleased to take up the responsibility of carrying on this work.

Budapest, April 2004.

*Dr. László Kodela*Director General

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to express our special thanks to

Albert Van Damme, Wilfried Verrezen, Moniteur Belge; Christos Demetriades, State Gazette of Cyprus; Jiri Kauczky, Sbírka Zákonů; Nina Koch, Lovtidende; Marika Seppius, Riigi Teataja; Arja-Hannele Lilja, Suomen Säädöskokoelma; Jean-Paul Bolufer, Joëlle Kauffmann, Journal Officiel; Rainer Diesem, Michael Hecker, Bundesanzeiger; Vasiliki Tsimpida, State Gazette of Greece; Fintan Butler, Iris Oifigiúil; dr. Francesco Nocita, Gazzetta Ufficiale; Ints Kalnins, Latvijas Vēstnesis; Mintautas Daulenskis, Valstybės žinios; Daniel Andrich, Memorial; Emanuel Abela, The Malta Government Gazette; Marius Lachowski, Dziennik Ustaw; João Esteves Pinto, António Braz Teixeira, Diário da República; Jan Svák, Zbierka zákonov; Erika Trojer, Uradni list; Julio Seage, Boletín Oficial del Estado; Thomas Rolén, Per-Anders Svensson, Svensk Författningssamling; Medard O. D. Scholten, Staatsblad.

ISSN 1725-5090

Az Európai Unió Hivatalos Lapja

L 168

Magyar nyelvű kiadás

Jogszabályok

47. évfolyam 2004. május 1.

Tartalom

Kötelezően közzéteendő jogi aktusok

- ★ Tanács 885/2004/EK rendelete (2004. április 26.) a 2003/2003/EK európai parlamenti és tanácsi rendelet, az 1334/2000/EK, a 2157/2001/EK, a 152/2002/EK, az 1499/2002/EK, az 1500/2003/EK és az 1798/2003/EK tanácsi rendeletek, az 1719/1999/EK, az 1720/1999/EK, a 253/2000/EK, az 508/2000/EK, az 1031/2000/EK, a 163/2001/EK, a 2235/25002/EK és a 291/2003/EK európai parlamenti és tanácsi határozatok, valamint az 1999/382/EK, a 2000/821/EK, a 2003/17/EK és a 2003/893/EK tanácsi határozatok az áruk szabad mozgása, a vállalati jog, a mezőgazdaság, az adózás, az oktatás és szakképzés, a kultúra és audiovizuális politika, valamint a külkapcsolatok területén, a Cseh Köztársaság, Észtország, Ciprus, Lettország, Litvánia, Magyarország, Málta, Lengyelország, Szlovénia és Szlovákia csatlakozására tekintettel történő kiigazításáról.......
- ★ A Bizottság 2004/886/EK rendelete (2004. március 4.) az áruk szabad áramlására, a versenypolitikára, a mezőgazdaságra, a környezetvédelemre és a külkapcsolatokra vonatkozó egyes rendeleteknek és határozatoknak Ciprus, a Cseh Köztársaság, Észtország, Lengyelország, Lettország, Litvánia, Magyarország, Málta, Szlovákia és Szlovénia csatlakozása miatt történő módosulásáról

Ár: 18,00 EUR



Azok a jogi aktusok, amelyeknek a címe normál szedéssel jelenik meg, a mezőgazdasági ügyek napi intézésére vonatkoznak, és rendszerint csak korlátozott ideig maradnak hatályban.

Valamennyi más jogszabály címét vastagon szedik, és előtte csillag szerepel.

OFFICIAL JOURNAL OF THE EUROPEAN UNION

The Office for Official Publications of the European Communities is the Publishing House of the institutions and other bodies of the European Union. It is responsible for producing and distributing EU publication via all media and by all means. The Publications Office, whose current organisation and operation are laid down by an interinstitutional agreement, is governed by a Management Committee, in which each institution is represented by its Secretary-General.

As a Publisher, the Office has a duty to offer the highest-quality service to its customers—the originating departments of the institutions and other bodies of the European Union—and to its public—the citizens of the European Union and people througout the world who are interested in European affairs.

At present the Office publishes the Official Journal of the European Union (OJ) daily in the 20 official languages of the Community. It consists of two related series (L for legislation and C for information and notices) and a supplement (S for public tenders).

The L series contains EU legislation, including regulations, directives, decisions, recommendations, opinions. In addition, the Directory of Community legislation in force is published as a part of the OJ L series. The directory lists references to the initial texts and to any subsequent amendments.

The C series contain EU information and notices, including summaries of decisions of the Court of Justice and the Court of First Instance, minutes of parliamentary meetings, reports of the Court of Auditors, parliamentary written questions and answers from the Council or Commission, statements from the Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of Regions, competition notices for recruitment by the EU institutions, and other document published pursuant to Community legislation.

The S series are the supplement to the OJ containing invitations to tender. They are published in two electronic formats (on- and off-line).

The EU-Lex portal offers an integrated access to legal texts that can be found in the Celex, EUR-Lex and Court of Justice's CURIA web sites.

The Office assists the institutions and other bodies of the European Union in their efforts to enhance the transparency of the legislative process and the European policies and to facilitate access to the entire body of European legislation and information—published above all in the C series of the O—with the aim of bringing the Union closer to its citizens.

BUNDESGESETZBLATT

FÜR DIE REPUBLIK ÖSTERREICH

Jahrgang 2004	Ausgegeben am 23. März 2004	Teil I
18. Bundesgesetz:	Sozialversicherungs-Änderungsgesetz 2004 – SVÄG 2004 (NR: GP XXII IA 335/A AB 401 S. 50. BR: 6986 AB 6998 S.706.)	

18. Bundesgesetz, mit dem das Allgemeine Sozialversicherungsgesetz, das Gewerbliche Sozialversicherungsgesetz und das Bauern-Sozialversicherungsgesetz geändert werden (Sozialversicherungs-Änderungsgesetz 2004 – SVÄG 2004)

Der Nationalrat hat beschlossen:

Artikel 1

Änderung des Allgemeinen Sozialversicherungsgesetzes

Das Allgemeine Sozialversicherungsgesetz, BGBl. Nr. 189/1955, zuletzt geändert durch das Bundesgesetz BGBl. I Nr. 145/2003, wird wie folgt geändert:

- 1. Im § 31 Abs. 4 Z 1 wird nach dem Ausdruck "Versicherungsnummern" der Ausdruck "und deren Verknüpfung mit dem entsprechenden bereichsspezifischen Personenkennzeichen (§ 9 des E-Government-Gesetzes, BGBl. I Nr. 10/2004)" eingefügt.
- 2. Dem § 31a Abs. 2 werden folgende Sätze angefügt:
- "Die Schlüsselfunktion innerhalb des ELSY darf auch mit Hilfe der Funktion der Bürgerkarte (§ 2 Z 10 des E-Government-Gesetzes) ausgeführt werden. In diesem Fall wird eine allfällige Verwendungs- oder Vorlagepflicht der innerhalb des ELSY zu verwendenden Chipkarten hinsichtlich dieser Funktion durch die Verwendung der Bürgerkarte erfüllt. Wird die Bürgerkarte auf einer innerhalb des ELSY zu verwendenden Chipkarte aufgebracht, so dürfen die für die Bürgerkartenfunktion notwendigen Daten, insbesondere die Stammzahl des Karteninhabers (der Karteninhaberin), auf dieser Karte gespeichert werden. Die Anwendung einer innerhalb des ELSY zu verwendenden Chipkarte für die Bürgerkartenfunktion ist ein mit dem ELSY vereinbarer Zweck im Sinne des Abs. 4."
- 3. Dem § 31a Abs. 3 wird folgender Satz angefügt:
- "Es ist Vorsorge zu treffen, dass der Zugang zu elektronisch gespeicherten personenbezogenen Daten mittels der innerhalb des ELSY zu verwendenden Chipkarten bis spätestens 31. Dezember 2010 durch PIN oder biometrische Merkmale abgesichert wird."
- 4. Im § 31c Abs. 1 entfallen die Absatzbezeichnung "(1)" sowie der vorletzte und letzte Satz.
- 5. § 31c Abs. 2 wird aufgehoben.
- 6. Nach § 610 werden folgende §§ 611 bis 613 samt Überschriften angefügt:
- "Schlussbestimmungen zu Art. 1 des Sozialversicherungs-Änderungsgesetzes 2004, BGBl. I Nr. 18 § 611. (1) Es treten in Kraft:
 - 1. mit 1. März 2004 die §§ 31 Abs. 4 Z 1, 31a Abs. 2 und 31c Abs. 1 in der Fassung des Bundesgesetzes BGBl. I Nr. 18/2004;
 - 2. mit 1. Jänner 2005 § 31a Abs. 3 in der Fassung des Bundesgesetzes BGBl. I Nr. 18/2004.
 - (2) § 31c Abs. 2 tritt mit Ablauf des 29. Februar 2004 außer Kraft.

AUSTRIA

There are two main official journals in Austria on federal level: one is the *Bundesgesetzblatt* (Federal Law Journal), the other one, the *Wiener Zeitung*, contains most of the publications, which have to be published by the courts in the *Firmenbuch* (Commercial Register), on the one hand, and by private companies (e.g. balance sheets of corporations above a certain size), on the other hand.

This year Austria underwent a general reform of the publication of laws. Up to this time the *Bundesgesetzblattgesetz* (Federal Law Journal) determined the printing in the *Bundesgesetzblatt* as the sole authentic way of publication. As of January 1, 2004, federal laws must be published authentically on the Internet. Hence, the *Bundesgesetzblatt* will only be printed on customer's demand.

The Publishing House, *Wiener Zeitung GmbH* is incorporated as a Limited Company owned by the Austrian Republic, represented by the Federal Chancellor.

At the present, the publication of laws is financed by the purchasers of the *Bundes-gesetzblatt*. In the future, publication on the Internet will be carried out and financed directly by the Austrian Government.

There are 3 divisions in the *Bundesgesetzblatt*:

- I. Federal Laws
- II. Ministerial Decrees
- III. Treaties

Public procurement tenders on federal level are published by the *Wiener Zeitung* both in printed form and on the Internet. Besides the *Wiener Zeitung*, there are 9 regional official journals (each one published by one of the nine states of Austria), which public procurement tenders on states'level. If a project is financed or co-financed from federal budget resources, the relevant public procurement tender has to be published in the *Wiener Zeitung*.

Court decisions of public interest are published in separate publications by other printing houses.

Parliamentary debate materials have been published by the Wiener Zeitung GmbH until May, 2003. Since then, these materials are published by the Administration of the Austrian Parliament on the Internet.

The two official publications of the company-Wiener Zeitung and the Bundes-gesetzblatt-can be bought both by subscription and also as a single. As the Wiener Zeitung is a daily newspaper, as well, it is available all over Austria.

The invoicing for advertisements and subscriptions is carried out by the staff off the company. Delivery of the official journals is mainly done by the official post-service, but more and more private distributors are drawn into this work. During the last years the portion of the free distribution was reduced to 5 percent per day.

There is an on-line connection between the Federal Chancellery and the Publishing House. The company receives more and more of the legal texts to be published electronically, but it has still to face other versions.

The Publishing House receives the texts mostly at least one week before the publication, but in an urgent case this period is reduced to 2-3 days.

The printing procedure of the two official journals is done by two external printing houses. All work of preparation for printing (editing, structuring, proofreading) is carried out by the staff of the Publishing House. In the future this work will be done by the Ministries and the Parliament themselves. The *Wiener Zeitung GmbH* entered into negotiations with the Ministries about a future service of the company, as at the moment the Ministries are lacking the necessary and experienced staff.

BELGISCH STAATSBLAD

MONITEUR BELGE

Publicatie overeenkomstig artikelen 472 tot 478 van de programmawet van 24 december 2002 gepubliceerd in het *Belgisch Staatsblad* van 31 december 2002.

Dit Belgisch Staatsblad kan geconsulteerd worden op:

www.staatsblad.be

Bestuur van het Belgisch Staatsblad, Leuvenseweg 40-42, 1000 Brussel, tel. 02 552 22 11 - Adviseur : A. Van Damme



Publication conforme aux articles 472 à 478 de la loiprogramme du 24 décembre 2002 publiée au *Moniteur belge* du 31 décembre 2002.

Le Moniteur belge peut être consulté à l'adresse :

www.moniteur.be

Direction du Moniteur belge, rue de Louvain 40-42, 1000 Bruxelles, tél. 02 552 22 11 - Conseiller : A. Van Damme

174e JAARGANG N.

N. 78

174e ANNEE

VRIJDAG 5 MAART 2004

VENDREDI 5 MARS 2004

INHOUD

Wetten, decreten, ordonnanties en verordeningen

Federale Overheidsdienst Binnenlandse Zaken

- 3 FEBRUARI 2004. Koninklijk besluit tot vaststelling van de officiële Duitse vertaling van het ministerieel besluit van 4 juli 2003 betreffende de opleiding van bestuurders van transporteenheden die andere gevaarlijke goederen dan die van klasse 1 en 7 over de weg vervoeren, bl. 12149.
- 3 FEBRUARI 2004. Koninklijk besluit tot vaststelling van de officiële Duitse vertaling van het koninklijk besluit van 9 maart 2003 betreffende het vervoer van gevaarlijke goederen over de weg, met uitzondering van ontplofbare en radioactieve stoffen, bl. 12153.
- 3 FEBRUARI 2004. Koninklijk besluit tot vaststelling van de officiële Duitse vertaling van het koninklijk besluit van 29 juni 2003 betreffende de opleiding van bestuurders van transporteenheden die andere gevaarlijke goederen dan radioactieve stoffen over de weg vervoeren, bl. 12169.
- 3 FEBRUARI 2004. Koninklijk besluit tot vaststelling van de officiële Duitse vertaling van het koninklijk besluit van 7 april 2003 houdende regeling van bepaalde methodes bij het toezicht op en de bescherming bij het vervoer van waarden en betreffende de technische kenmerken van de voertuigen voor waardevervoer, bl. 12178.

Federale Overheidsdienst Financiën

- 29 FEBRUARI 2004. Koninklijk besluit houdende diverse bepalingen inzake accijnzen, bl. 12191.
- 29 FEBRUARI 2004. Koninklijk besluit tot wijziging van de wet van 22 oktober 1997 betreffende de structuur en de accijnstarieven inzake minerale olie, bl. 12198.
- 23 FEBRUARI 2004. Ministerieel besluit betreffende de uitgifte van de Staatsbon op 5 jaar 4 maart 2004-2009, en de Staatsbon op 8 jaar 4 maart 2004-2012, bl. 12208.
- 2 MAART 2004. Ministerieel besluit betreffende het fiscaal stelsel van drankverpakkingen onderworpen aan verpakkingsheffing en producten onderworpen aan milieutaks, bl. 12209.

SOMMAIRE

Lois, décrets, ordonnances et règlements

Service public fédéral Intérieur

- 3 FEVRIER 2004. Arrêté royal établissant la traduction officielle en langue allemande de l'arrêté ministériel du 4 juillet 2003 relatif à la formation des conducteurs d'unités de transports transportant par la route des marchandises dangereuses autres que celles des classes 1 et 7, p. 12149.
- 3 FEVRIER 2004. Arrêté royal établissant la traduction officielle en langue allemande de l'arrêté royal du 9 mars 2003 relatif au transport des marchandises dangereuses par route, à l'exception des matières explosibles et radioactives, p. 12153.
- 3 FEVRIER 2004. Arrêté royal établissant la traduction officielle en langue allemande de l'arrêté royal du 29 juin 2003 relatif à la formation des conducteurs d'unités de transport transportant par la route des marchandises dangereuses autres que les matières radioactives, p. 12169.
- 3 FEVRIER 2004. Arrêté royal établissant la traduction officielle en langue allemande de l'arrêté royal du 7 avril 2003 réglant certaines méthodes de surveillance et de protection du transport de valeurs et relatif aux spécificités techniques des véhicules de transport de valeurs, p. 12178.

Service public fédéral Finances

- 29 FEVRIER 2004. Arrêté royal portant des dispositions diverses en matière d'accise, p. 12191.
- 29 FEVRIER 2004. Arrêté royal modifiant la loi du 22 octobre 1997 relative à la structure et aux taux des droits d'accise sur les huiles minérales, p. 12198.
- 23 FEVRIER 2004. Arrêté ministériel relatif à l'émission du Bon d'Etat à 5 ans 4 mars 2004-2009, et du Bon d'Etat à 8 ans 4 mars 2004-2012, p. 12208.
- 2 MARS 2004. Arrêté ministériel relatif au régime fiscal des récipients pour boissons soumis à la cotisation d'emballage et des produits soumis à écotaxe, p. 12209.

196 bladzijden/pages

BELGIUM

In Belgium-according to the Constitution-a law may be enforced only if it has been published in the Belgian Official Gazette.

Various legal acts regulate the publication in the Gazette and in some cases provisions are made for a number of technical aspects relating to its form (e.g. French and Dutch versions appear opposite each other).

The most important regulations are Articles 472–478 of the "Programme Law".

Despite the country's federal structure, legislation is published on a centralised level. The Gazette publishes the legislation and regulations of federal authorities, regions and communities.

The three paper copies are printed on the basis of the electronic files made available on the Internet.

Distribution is carried out via Internet.

Files may be used free of charge and there is no copyright.

Paper copies can be ordered on demand.

The Belgian Official Journal Publisher is part of the Department of Justice, so it is 100% public institution without autonomy.

The Gazette is financed by the Government. The revenues are transferred back to the Public Treasury. The revenues come mainly from private and non-profit companies who have to pay for the publication of their acts in one of the Gazette's Annexes.

The federal authorities, communities and regions have to publish in the Official Gazette.

Provinces and local communities have their own publications.

Public procurement tenders are published by the Gazette in a publication called "Bulletin des Adjudications – Bulletin der Aanbestedigen".

Court decisions are mainly published by private companies. Some decisions of the "Cour d'arbitrage" are published in the Gazette. The Department of Justice has a *Juridat portal*. The courts can use this portal to publish directly their decisions on the Internet, but they are not obliged to do that.

Parliamentary debate materials are published by the seven Parliaments.

Only 3 paper copies are printed in the Department of Justice.

Distribution to the public is made by using PDF files available free of charge on the website of the Department.

The Publisher has a database, called *Justel*, which also contains consolidated versions of legal acts. This database is not complete, has no legal value and is, at present, updated about 4 months after the publication of the legal text in the Official Gazette. Many Departments and some private editors do similar consolidation.

Legal texts to be published are transmitted to the Publisher in electronic and in printed form, as well. Period before publication depends on the wishes of the responsible Department and on the volume and complexity. Due to Internet distribution the text can be published within 2 hours. Proofreading is usually carried out by the client.

The Publisher does the complete prepress phase, produces the 3 paper copies and charges the Internet database.

Summaries of the Official Journal of the EU are published in the Gazette.

Most of the Belgian legislation exists in French and Dutch and some of it in German (the 3 official languages).



ΕΠΙΣΗΜΗ ΕΦΗΜΕΡΙΔΑ

ΤΗΣ ΚΥΠΡΙΑΚΗΣ ΔΗΜΟΚΡΑΤΙΑΣ

Αφιθμός 3832	Πέμπτη, 8 Αποιλίου 2004		1303	
Αοιθμός 2560			Νικολέττα Παπαγεωργίου-Γεωργίου	(Δ. 13210)
ΠΡΟΕΔΡΟΣ ΤΗΣ ΔΗΜΟΚΡΑΤΙΑΣ		Ράνια Γεωργίου	(Δ. 13324)	
			Παντελίτσα Σοφοκλέους	(Δ. 13326)
Αναφορικά με τη γνωστοπ δημοσιεύτηκε στην Επίσημη			Βασιλική Λεύκιου	(Δ. 13328)
τίας της 23ης Μαρτίου 2004,			Θεόδωρος Σουρμελής	(Δ. 13332)
τίας κης 23ης Μαφτιου 2001; τίας κ. Τάσσος Παπαδόπουλ			Γιάννα Κπαλά	(Δ. 13341)
και ανέλαβε τα καθήκοντα του λειτουργήματός του την		Χρίστος Μιχαηλίδης	(Δ. 13354)	
1η Αποιλίου 2004 και από			Μάριος Χαραλάμπους	$(\Delta. 13355)$
δοεύων της Βουλής των Αντι	προσώπων Δρ	Βάσος Λυσ-	Παναγιώτης Αντωνίου	(Δ. 13356)
σαρίδης έπαυσε να ασκεί το λ	ειτούογημα το	ου Πφοέδφου	Ξένιος Οικονόμου	(Δ. 13359)
της Δ ημοκοατίας.			Παύλος Παύλου	(Δ. 13360)
Αφιθμός 2561			Ανδοέας Κυοιακίδης	(Δ. 13361)
ΔΙΟΡΙΣ	MOI		Γεώργιος Χόπλαρος	(Δ. 13362)
Οι πιο κάτω διορίζονται		στη μόνιμη	Χοιστόφορος Φελλάς	(Δ. 13363)
θέση Δασκάλου Σχολείων Δη			Χουστάλλα Αντωνίου-Κάπουλα	(Δ. 13364)
την 1η Σεπτεμβοίου 2003:	pro vo15 2vo.		Σοφία Χριστοδούλου	(Δ. 13365)
Βάσος Βασιλείου		(П. 6916)	Νάντια Ιωάννου	(Δ. 13366)
Μαρία Παπανικολάου-Πο	ιπανεωονίου	(II. 7427)	Κλεοπάτοα Μουσκή	(Δ. 13367)
Χρίστος Βασιλειάδης		$(\Delta. 14078)$	Ελένη Ζαννέττου	(Δ. 13368)
Σύλβια Πρωτοπαπά		$(\Delta. 13021)$	Σταύgος Αγαθοκλέους	(Δ. 13369)
Έλενα Γιάγκου		$(\Delta. 13029)$	Αντρέας Ηλία	(Δ. 13370)
Ζαφείοω Παπαγιάννη		$(\Delta. 13058)$	Στέλιος Στυλιανού	(Δ. 13371)
Αντώνιος Ζαρίντας		$(\Delta. 13059)$	Στέλλα Χριστοδούλου	(Δ. 13372)
Νικολέττα Χατζηγιώρκα		(Δ. 13060)	Ανδοονίκη Ιωάννου	(Δ. 13373)
Παναγιώτα Χοιστοφή-Πα	παλεοντίου	$(\Delta. 13061)$	Αναστασία Σπύρου	(Δ. 13374)
Κάκια Ανδρονίκου		$(\Delta. 13062)$	Μαριάννα Χριστοδουλίδου	(Δ. 13375)
Ανθή Ραπτοπούλου		$(\Delta. 13063)$	Δέσποινα Κατσαντώνη	(Δ. 13376)
Ελένη Κάρμιου		$(\Delta. 13064)$	Μαρίνα Πρωτοπαπά	(Δ. 13377)
Γιάννα Τσίγκλες		$(\Delta. 13065)$	Κατερίνα Παπαχυριαχού	(Δ. 13378)
Ελένη Μιχαήλ		(Δ. 13066)	Θεοδώρα Ιωάννου	(Δ. 13379)
Αιμιλία Σιακαλλή		$(\Delta. 13067)$	Μαρία Έπτορος	(Δ. 13380)
Ντανιέλα-Μαρία Παπαξεν	νοπούλου	$(\Delta. 13068)$	Ανδοέας Κουοή	(Δ. 13381)
Νίκη Κάουου		$(\Delta. 13069)$	Παύλος Καζάκου	$(\Delta. 13382)$
Παναγιώτα Αθανασιάδου		$(\Delta. 13070)$	Μιχάλης Κουρούσιη	(Δ. 13383)
Κωνσταντία Κωνσταντίνο	ov	$(\Delta. 13071)$	Σωκράτης Κολιάς	$(\Delta. 13384)$
Πόπη Νικολάου		(Δ. 13072)	Άγγελος Αγγελοδήμου	$(\Delta. 13385)$
Θεογνωσία Μιχαηλά		$(\Delta. 13073)$	Αντοέας Κουκκούφης	(Δ. 13386)
Χαρίκλεια Ιωάννου		$(\Delta. 13074)$	Σόλων Χοιστοφόρου	$(\Delta. 13387)$
Χοιστιάνα Κανίκλη		$(\Delta. 13077)$	Μιχαήλ Μιχαήλ	$(\Delta. 13424)$
Γεωργία Νεοκλέους		$(\Delta. 13078)$	Σπύgος Γεωργίου	(Δ. 13426)
Σταύρος Αναγνώστου		$(\Delta. 13093)$	Ηλίας Μαρκόπουλος	(Δ. 13568)
Ανδοούλα Μουοούζη		(Δ. 13094)	Βασίλειος Πανούσης	(Δ. 13569)
TS-41 - March Outs		(A. 12200)	Ποινονικότης Κοσινώνιος	(A 12570

 $(\Delta. 13209)$

Τζούλια Μαρρά-Θωίδου

Παναγιώτης Κοφινάκος

(Δ. 13570

CYPRUS

The publication of laws in Cyprus is regulated by the Article 52 of the Constitution and by the Article 43 of the Interpretation Law Cap. 1.

The Printing Office of the Republic of Cyprus is a Government Department under the Ministry of Finance.

The budget of the Office is included in the main budget of the Government.

The Office itself earns a considerable income out of the selling of publications as well as from various other resources which are forwarded to the State budget.

The laws and ministerial and main authority acts are published in the Official Gazette in separate parts and sections.

Public Procurement tenders are published in the Official Gazette.

The Court decisions are published by the Supreme Court and printed in the Printing Office. Some of them are also printed in the private sector. All the editions are sold by the Publications Department of the Printing Office.

The parliamentary debate materials are printed by the Printing Office in separate volumes.

All the official publications are distributed through the Publications Department of the Printing Office to the subscribers. They are also sold as single at the Department.

The role of the free distribution is to inform the International Organizations about Cyprus.

The legal texts to be published arrive to the Printing Office by mail, fax or in printed form. The minimum period the Office receives the texts is three days in advance.

The Office has a modern complex of printing establishment equipped with modern machinery. All the procedures of editing, proofreading and structuring are carried out by the experienced staff of the Office.

The legislation of Cyprus is partly translated into English.



SBÍRKA ZÁKONŮ

ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA

Částka 31

Rozeslána dne 4. března 2004

Cena Kč 22,-

OBSAH:

- 97. Vyhláška k provedení zákona o ochranných známkách
- 98. Nález Ústavního soudu ze dne 28. ledna 2004 ve věci návrhu na zrušení § 42 odst. 1 zákona č. 148/1998 Sb., o ochraně utajovaných skutečností a o změně některých zákonů, ve znění pozdějších předpisů

97

VYHLÁŠKA

ze dne 20. února 2004

k provedení zákona o ochranných známkách

Úřad průmyslového vlastnictví stanoví podle § 53 zákona č. 441/2003 Sb., o ochranných známkách a o změně zákona č. 6/2002 Sb., o soudech, soudcích, přísedících a státní správě soudů a o změně některých dalších zákonů (zákon o soudech a soudcích), ve znění pozdějších předpisů, (zákon o ochranných známkách), (dále jen "zákon"):

ČÁST PRVNÍ OCHRANNÉ ZNÁMKY

§ 1 **Přihláška ochranné známky** (K § 19 zákona)

- (1) V přihlášce ochranné známky (dále jen "přihláška") se uvede rovněž:
 - a) údaj o tom, zda má být označení zapsáno do rejstříku ochranných známek (dále jen "rejstřík")
 v běžném písmu nebo v grafickém provedení,

- nebo zda se jedná o obrazové označení, anebo o označení prostorové; obsahuje-li označení údaje v jiném písmu než latince, přihlašovatel uvede přepis těchto údajů do latinky,
- b) údaj o tom, zda je označení tvořené pouze barvou nebo kombinací barev včetně názvu či čísla barev s uvedením názvu použité vzorkovnice barev.
- (2) Není-li přihlašované označení v běžném písmu, přiloží přihlašovatel tři vyobrazení označení o velikosti A8 až A4, která jsou schopna jasně reprodukovat označení ve všech podrobnostech; je-li přihláška podána v elektronické podobě podepsané elektronicky podle zvláštního právního předpisu, 1) přiloží přihlašovatel jedno vyobrazení.
- (3) Na přihlášce Úřad průmyslového vlastnictví (dále jen "Úřad") vyznačí datum jejího podání a přidělí jí číslo spisu.
- (4) Nebyl-li zaplacen správní poplatek podle § 19 odst. 3 zákona ve stanovené lhůtě, sdělí Úřad přihlašo-

¹⁾ Zákon č. 227/2000 Sb., o elektronickém podpisu, ve znění pozdějších předpisů.

CZECH REPUBLIC

The publication of legal acts is regulated by Act No. 309/1999 Coll., on the Collection of Statutes and on the Collection of International Agreements.

The Ministry of Interior is the publisher of the Collection of Statutes and of the Collection of International Agreements. Pursuant to Act No. 309/1999 Coll. the Ministry of Interior ensures editing, printing, publishing and distribution of these Collections. If the text concerned is short (max.10 pages) the Ministry itself is able to print it. If the text is longer the printing is ensured through a contractor (Moraviapress) that provides the distribution, as well.

The publication of the Collections is financed by the subscriptions, if they are not sufficient, the difference is financed from the state budget.

In accordance with Act No. 309/1999 Coll. the legislation in force (i.e. acts and implementing regulations) is promulgated in the Collection of Statutes. International agreements, other matters of facts important for their execution and decisions of international authorities and organisations are promulgated in the Collection of International Agreements.

Pursuant to commercial law, public procurement tenders are published in the Commercial Bulletin.

Decisions and Announcements of the Constitutional Court are published in compliance with the Act on Constitutional Court in the Collection of Statutes. Decisions of other Courts are published in the Collection of Decisions and Standpoints.

The parliamentary debate materials are published as so-called chamber-presses and they are available on the website of the Parliament.

The distribution of the Collections is carried out by contractors.

The Collections can be bought by subscription and also as single.

The Ministry of Interior has a competence to create drafts of law and also to publish acts in force.

Plain texts are usually sent by mail to the Ministry. The period between delivery and publishing is various, it depends on the difficulty of the proofreading (volume, content etc.) and on the urgency of publication. According to law an act has to be published at the latest 30 days after its arrival in the Ministry.

The Ministry itself does all the editorial works.

If a legal text to be published is short (max.10 pages), the Ministry carries out the printing.

If the text is longer the printing is ensured through a contractor.

In respect of national legislation, translations of certain significant acts are available in the Government's sites.



Lovtidende

Hæfte 33

Nr. 128-132

2004

Udgivet den 9. marts 2004

23. februar 2004.

1091

Nr. 128.

Bekendtgørelse om ændring af bekendtgørelse om køretøjers største bredde, længde, højde, vægt og akseltryk¹⁾

(buslængde)

§ 1

I bekendtgørelse nr. 567 af 24. juni 1992 om køretøjers største bredde, længde, højde, vægt og akseltryk, foretages følgende ændringer:

1. I § 2 *a* indsættes som stk. 2:

»Stk. 2. For bil eller vogntog, hvor det trækkende køretøj er en bil, gælder endvidere, at når køretøjet kører tangentielt ind i den cirkel, der er omtalt i stk. 1, må ingen del bevæge sig uden for tangenten med mere end 0,60 m.«.

2. § 6 a affattes således:

»§ 6 a. En bus med 2 aksler må hverken i belæsset eller ubelæsset stand have en længde, der overstiger 13,50 m.

Stk. 2. En bus med flere end 2 aksler må hverken i belæsset eller ubelæsset stand have en længde, der overstiger 15 m.

Stk. 3. Ved anvendelse af en bus med en læng-

de på over 12 m til lokal eller regional rutekørsel, jf. buslovens bestemmelser herom, kræves forudgående tilladelse fra vejbestyrelsen.

Stk. 4. En ledbus må hverken i belæsset eller ubelæsset stand have en længde, der overstiger 18,75 m.«.

3. § 7, stk. 3, sidste pkt. ophæves.

4. § 8, stk. 1, affattes således:

»§ 8. Andre vogntog end bil med sættevogn må hverken i belæsset eller ubelæsset stand have en længde, der overstiger 18,75 m.«.

5. § 8 *a* ophæves.

§ 2

Bekendtgørelsen træder i kraft den 9. marts 2004.

Færdselsstyrelsen, den 23. februar 2004

CARSTEN FALK HANSEN

/ Ib Rasmussen

AR000781

Bekendtgørelsen indeholder bestemmelser, der gennemfører Europa-Parlamentets og Rådets Direktiv 2002/7/EF, (EF-tidende 2002 L 67 s. 47).

DENMARK

The publication of legislation in Denmark is done under the authority of *Lovtidendeloven* (Law on *Lovtidende*) from 1991. This Act contains the general provisions in the field of publication of Danish Acts, Statutory Orders and Regulations, Circulars and Ministerial Rules of Guidance.

There are two official journals in Denmark. All Acts and Statutory Orders are published in the official journal *Lovtidende*, while Ministerial Circulars and Ministerial Rules of Guidance are published in the official journal *Ministerialtidende*. All documents published in the two journals—as well as a wide range of other relevant official documents—are accessible in the official online legal information system *Retsinformation* (Legal Information).

The Danish official journals are published by the Secretariat for Legal Information which is a directorate under the Danish Ministry of Justice.

The publishing of the journals and also the edition and maintenance of the online system and the belonging databases are solely financed from the annual governmental budget.

Lovtidende is divided into three parts:

Lovtidende A – Acts and Statutory Orders

Lovtidende B – Budget

Lovtidende C - All Treaties, Conventions and other International Agreements

Lovtidende A is published regularly twice every week and on the day after the Royal Assent of an Act passed by the Parliament. Lovtidende B is usually printed app. three times every year whereas. Lovtidende C is published app. ten to twelve times a year.

The printed version of *Lovtidende* is still the official publication of Acts and Statutory Orders whereas the publication of *Ministerialtidende* is done electronically since 1 January, 1998. It is still, however, printed once a month.

Public procurement tenders are not published in the official journals.

Court decisions are published in the Danish Weekly Law Reports.

Retsinformation also contains bills and other documents about the legislative process in the Parliament: debates, parliamentary resolutions and proposals for resolutions, including the motives for the proposals. Retsinformation contains Statements of the Danish Ombudsman and administrative decisions of precedent character.

Access to the databases is free of charge.

The distribution of the journals is done by subscription.

The consolidated version of legal acts is prepared by the relevant Ministry. The Secretariat for Legal Information does, however, check if the consolidated act complies with certain general provisions as a part of the proofreading on legal aspects performed by the Secretariat concerning ministerial documents, whereas the proofreading on legal aspects conserning bills is done by the Law Department in the Ministry of Justice.

In general, the documents arrive by mail, fax or as pdf. files to the Secretariat. Deadline is always one week before publication except for certain urgent cases. New acts and other documents receiving the Royal Assent are, however, printed on the day of the Royal Assent and delivered to the subscribers the following day. This is also the procedure to be followed if urgent publication of Statutory Orders is needed.

The printing of the official journals is carried out by a private Printing House pursuant to a general contract between the company and the Government.

The two official journals and *Retsinformation* are published and edited by the Secretariat for Legal Information. Proofreading of the documents concerning legal aspects of the text is done by the Ministry of Justice (Bills) and by the Secretariat for Legal Information (Statutory Orders, Circulars, Rules of Guidance).

Translations of some Acts of great importance can be found on the homepage of the relevant Ministry.



RIIGI TEATAJA

I OSA RIIGIKOGU, VABARIIGI PRESIDENDI JA VABARIIGI VALITSUSE ÕIGUSAKTID

Nr 85 24. detsember 2003

Nr 85

SISUKORD	
III	
Art 574. Vabariigi Valitsuse 19. detsembri 2003. a määrus nr 332 «Politseivormiriietuse kirjeldus ja esemete kandmise tähtajad»	3443
575. Vabariigi Valitsuse 19. detsembri 2003. a määrus nr 344 «Vabariigi Valitsuse 30. oktoobri 2003. a määruse nr 270 «Rahvusvaheliselt kontrollitavate kalaliikide lubatud väljapüügimaht ja väljaspool Eesti Vabariigi jurisdiktsiooni oleval veealal lubatud püügivõimalused 2004. aastal» ja Vabariigi Valitsuse 30. oktoobri 2003. a määruse nr 268 «Kutselise kalapüügiõiguse tasu määrad 2004. aastaks» muutmine»	3453
576. Vabariigi Valitsuse 19. detsembri 2003. a määrus nr 346 «Vabariigi Valitsuse 18. juuli 1996. a määruse nr 191 «Avalikult kasutatavate veekogude nimekirja kinnitamine» muutmine»	3455
577. Vabariigi Valitsuse 19. detsembri 2003. a määrus nr 347 «Vabariigi Valitsuse 7. mai 2002. a määruse nr 149 «Kaitsejõudude, piirivalve ja päästemeeskondade veokite, kauba ning isikkoosseisu asjade tolliformaalsuste kord» muutmine»	3455
578. Vabariigi Valitsuse 19. detsembri 2003. a määrus nr 348 «Vabariigi Valitsuse 27. novembri 2003. a määruse nr 292 «2004. aasta ajateenijate ja õppekogunemistele kutsutavate reservväelaste arvu kinnitamine» muutmine»	3456

ESTONIA

According to the Estonian Constitution, a law enters into force after their publication in *Riigi Teataja* (State Gazette). In Estonia a separate act regulates the publication of legislation, *Riigi Teataja Seadus* (Act on Riigi Teataja). State Gazette has two forms, an electronic and a printed version. Both publications are identical and official (the electronic database exists since 1 June, 2002).

Riigi Teataja Kirjastus (State Gazette Publisher) is a state institution subordinated to State Chancellery.

State Gazette is published from budget resources, a part of the costs are, however, covered from the profits of publication.

According to the Act on the State Gazette legal acts and other documents are classified in the different parts of State Gazette. The general division is as follows:

Part I – Legislation of the Parliament, the President of Republic and the Government Part II – International Agreements and other legislation and notices concerning foreign relations

Part III - Decisions of the Supreme Court

Appendix – Regulations of Ministries, Government Prescriptions, Prescriptions of the Prime Minister

Legal acts of public importance of local governments are published only on the Internet.

Public procurement tenders are published by *Riigihangete Amet* (Public Procurement Office). State bodies are required to publish information about their public procurements on their websites.

Decisions of the Supreme Court are published in the Gazette - Part III.

Parliamentary debate materials are published by the Parliament Chancellery on the Internet.

Electronic State Gazette is free to use for everybody. Subscription, ordering and distribution of the printed version are carried out by the channels of distributing periodicals. Prices of single sale and subscription are fixed for every year by the state secretary. Free copies are distributed to state libraries and local governments. This practice may be revised as *eRT* distributes legal acts free on the Internet.

One part of *eRT* is the database of consolidated legal acts that contains consolidated texts of laws, of legal acts of the Government and the Ministries. The electronic database started on 1 June, 2002. A consolidated text is composed after the publication of an amendment of a legal act.

Legal texts are transmitted to the Publisher for publication in electronic and in printed form. Pursuant to law, the deadline to publish laws is seven working days, for other legal acts ten working days. There is an online connection to the Publisher through which legal texts can be transmitted.

The Publisher has two departments. Technical check and the distribution of legal acts between the different parts of State Gazette is carried out by the editorial department. The other department is responsible for printing.

The translation of national legislation is carried out by a State governed institution.

SUOMEN SÄÄDÖSKOKOELMA

2004

Julkaistu Helsingissä 1 päivänä maaliskuuta 2004

N:o 159—162

N:o Tasavallan presidentin asetus Suomen, Norjan ja Ruotsin välillä Pohjoiskalotin koulutussäätiöstä tehdyn sopimuksen voimaansaattamisesta 437 160 Valtioneuvoston asetus valtion liikelaitosten kirjanpidosta ja tilinpäätöksestä 438 161 Valtioneuvoston asetus Valtion ydinjätehuoltorahastosta 443 162 Maa- ja metsätalousministeriön asetus Kasvintuotannon tarkastuskeskuksen maksullisista suoritteista 447

N:o 159

Tasavallan presidentin asetus

Suomen, Norjan ja Ruotsin välillä Pohjoiskalotin koulutussäätiöstä tehdyn sopimuksen voimaansaattamisesta

Annettu Helsingissä 27 päivänä helmikuuta 2004

Tasavallan presidentin päätöksen mukaisesti, joka on tehty työministerin esittelystä, säädetään:

1 §

Tukholmassa 20 päivänä joulukuuta 2002 Suomen, Norjan ja Ruotsin välillä Pohjoiskalotin koulutussäätiöstä tehty sopimus, jonka eduskunta on hyväksynyt 23 päivänä lokakuuta 2003 ja jonka tasavallan presidentti on hyväksynyt 21 päivänä marraskuuta 2003, on Suomen osalta kansainvälisesti voimassa 27 päivästä joulukuuta 2003 niin kauan kuin siitä on sovittu.

2 §

Sopimuksen määräykset ovat asetuksena voimassa.

3 §

Tämä asetus tulee voimaan 1 päivänä maaliskuuta 2004.

Helsingissä 27 päivänä helmikuuta 2004

Tasavallan Presidentti TARJA HALONEN

Työministeri Tarja Filatov

HE 97/2003 TyVM 4/2003 EV 47/2003

(Sopimusteksti on julkaistu Suomen säädöskokoelman sopimussarjan n:ossa 15/2004)

25—2004 440201

FINLAND

Finland has an Act concerning The Statutes of Finland (Act on The Statutes of Finland 188/2000).

The Ministry of Justice is responsible for the publication and distribution of The Statutes of Finland. In this respect, the Ministry co-operates with the Parliament, the Cabinet Office and the Ministry for Foreign Affairs, so that the needs of the various parties pertaining to the publication of The Statutes of Finland and the Treaty Series are taken appropriately into account.

The Ministry of Justice may delegate practical tasks relating to the publication and distribution of The Statutes of Finland to other State authorities, institutions or companies, private individuals, corporations or foundations.

The Publishing House of the Official Journal of Finland is an Ltd. *Edita Publishing Ltd.* was previously a part of the Government Printing House. The printing house was turned into a corporation about 10 years ago and the publishing house was established and separated from the printing activities in 2002. At the moment the Finnish government is the sole owner of the company. It is likely that at least a part of the ownership is going to be privatised in the future.

The publication of The Statutes of Finland is financed from business venture (notifications, subscription fees).

The following statutes are published in The Statutes of Finland:

- Acts of the Parliament,
- The Rules of Procedure of Parliament and the other rules and instructions adopted by the Parliament in plenary session for the organisation of parliamentary work or for the bodies elected by the Parliament,
 - Decrees of the President of the Republic and of the Government,
 - Decrees of Ministries, unless otherwise stated by law,
- Parliamentary decisions on state finances are also published in The Statutes of Finland.

For a special reason, a Ministry may decide that a Decree of the Ministry, with little significance to the public at large, will be published in the Ministry's norm collection instead of The Statutes of Finland. The orders of other State authorities shall be published in the norm collection of the authority in question.

The Statutes of Finland series has a separate part (Treaty Series) for the publication of treaties and other corresponding instruments containing international obligations binding on Finland.

Besides The Statutes of Finland, there is an Official Gazette in Finland. According to law various legal issues are to be published in this Gazette: fusions and other legal acts of registered companies, bankruptcies etc.

The public procurement tenders are published in the Public Procurement Magazine. This Magazine is also published by the *Edita Publishing Ltd*. The Publishing House won the right of publication by tender published by the Ministry of Trade and Industry.

The court decisions are published by the courts. The decisions are also available in various commercial databases, for example in *Edita*'s own *Edilex*-service.

Parliamentary debate materials are published in abstracts by the Prime Minister's Office in the Official Gazette under the title "Parliament's" week and "Council of State's week".

The Statutes of Finland can be subscribed as printed bulletin and it is also kept available to the public on an information network free of charge. The network is maintained by the Ministry of Justice. The Official Gazette and the Public Procurement Magazine can also be subscribed as printed bulletins and they are also available in the electronic database of the publisher. The preceding issues can be found free of charge in the database.

The acts in force are available in the *Edilex*-database of the Publishing House.

The legal texts are transmitted to the Printing house online from the ministries and various authorities. The minimum period before the publishing is three days. The authority in question takes care of structuring, proofreading etc. of the legal texts and transfers them ready for printing and electronic publishing to the printing house. The notifications in Official Gazette and in the Public Procurement Magazine are edited and proofread by the editorial staff of the Publishing House.

Since 2002 printing activities have been separated from the Publishing House.

Finnish legislation is always published in both official languages of Finland (Finnish and Swedish). The Ministry of Justice takes care of the translation of certain statutes into English and occasionally into French.

If a treaty is not authentic in either its Finnish or Swedish version, it must be published in at least one authentic language.

ISSN 0373-0425 - CPPAP 0108 B 05088

RÉPUBLIQUE FRANÇAISE

OURNAL OFFICIEL

LOIS ET DÉCRETS

SOMMAIRE GÉNÉRAL

Sommaire analytique page suivante

4839
4856
4860
4862
4891
4895
4896
4903
4906



FRANCE

The publication of legal acts in France is regulated by the Decree of 20th February, 2004 on the "Promulgation of Laws and Decrees Published in the *Journal official de la Republique française*".

The "Journal officiel de la Republique française" is published by the Directorate of the Official Journal which is subordinate to the Prime Minister's Services and carries out its activity under the Secrétariat général du gouvernement's authority. The Publishing House is an anonymous open stock company.

The publication of the Official Journal is financed from budget resources.

The laws and decrees are published in the daily edition of the Official Journal. These legal texts are completed by our Official Bulletins:

- BODACC (Bulletin officiel des Annonces civiles et commerciales): Bulletin of Declarations of Enterprices
- BOAMP (Bulletin des Annonces de marchés publics): Bulletin of Public Procurement tenders
- BALO (Bulletin des Annonces légales) Bulletin of Legal Notices publishes all the firms quoted on the Stock Exchange
 - Journal officiel des Associations: Official Journal of Associations

All these bulletins are available both in paper edition and via Internet.

The ministries have their own official bulletins. The Directorate publishes 40 periodicals.

The publication of court decisions is proposed by the President of each Court. The Bulletin of Decisions of Criminal Court and the Bulletin of Decisions of Civil Court are published by the Official Journal.

The desicions of the Council of State and of the Constitutional Council are published daily by the Official Journal. The annual report of cases before the Court are published by private editors.

Debates and questions of the Assemblée nationale and Sénat are published by the Official Journal, as stipulated by the Constitution.

From the year 2004, these texts will be composed by the Services of the *Assemblée nationale* and *Sénat* and they are also available on their websites. The texts are electronically transmitted to the Official Journal.

Access to the legal database via Internet is free of charge.

The distribution of the 40 periodicals is done by subscription, but they are also available as single in the bookshops of the Official Journal or can be ordered via the distribution network.

Legifrance is a legal database and operates free of charge. It was launched 16 September, 2002. It provides access to the Constitution, codes, laws, regulations, collective agreements, international treaties, European law, national, international and European reports of cases before the Court and some other official publications.

The Official Journal's main obligation is to publish the daily edition of the Official Journal. The Official Journal has to check the legal texts (dates, signatures, form, conformability, etc.) and supervises all the operations until the printing of the Official Journal.

The Official Journal has its own Printing House: "Société anonyme de composition et d'impression des Journaux officiels" which has the status of workers'cooperative. It provides the printing work for the Government.

However, about 20% of the printing work is made by external firms, especially the photocomposition, though all editorial work is done by the Official Journal.

The Official Journal is a distributor of the publications published by the Office for the Official Publications of the EU.

The free online service "Legifrance" provides a link to the legal database of the EU.

The most current codes are translated into English and Spanish and are available on the Internet.

G 5702

1027

Bundesgesetzblatt

Teil I

2004	Ausgegeben zu Bonn am 27. Mai 2004	Nr. 2
Tag	Inhalt	Seite
18. 5.2004	Zweites Gesetz zur Vereinfachung der Wahl der Arbeitnehmervertreter in den Aufsichtsrat FNA: neu: 801-14; 801-3, 801-8, 801-2, 320-1, 801-7, 4121-1, 7631-1, 801-1 GESTA: E046	974
18. 5.2004	Verordnung über die Berufsausbildung zum Raumausstatter/zur Raumausstatterin FNA: neu: 7110-6-93; 7110-6-19	980
18. 5.2004	Erste Verordnung zur Änderung der Verordnung über die Berufsausbildung zum Fluggerätmechani- ker/zur Fluggerätmechanikerin	992
18. 5.2004	Verordnung über die Berufsausbildung zum Fahrradmonteur/zur Fahrradmonteurin	993
18. 5.2004	Verordnung zur Änderung umschulungs- und fortbildungsrechtlicher Vorschriften FNA: 806-21-7-47, 806-21-7-70, 806-21-7-74, 806-21-7-47	1002
18. 5.2004	Verordnung über die Prüfungen zu den anerkannten Abschlüssen Geprüfter Übersetzer/Geprüfte Übersetzerin und Geprüfter Dolmetscher/Geprüfte Dolmetscherin	1004
19. 5.2004	Zweite Verordnung zur Durchführung des Finanzausgleichsgesetzes im Ausgleichsjahr 2002 FNA: neu: 603-9-33-2	1009
24. 5.2004	Verordnung über Nahrungsergänzungsmittel und zur Änderung der Verordnung über vitaminisierte Lebensmittel	1011
24. 5.2004	Verordnung über Fruchtsaft, einige ähnliche Erzeugnisse und Fruchtnektar (Fruchtsaftverordnung)	1016

Bekanntmachung über das Inkrafttreten des Übereinkommens vom 28. Mai 1999 zur Vereinheitlichung bestimmter Vorschriften über die Beförderung im internationalen Luftverkehr (Montrealer Übereinkommen) und der Artikel 1 und 2 des Gesetzes zur Harmonisierung des Haftungsrechts im

FNA: neu: 2125-40-93; 2125-40-71, 2125-40-13, 2125-40-14

24. 5.2004

Luftverkehr . . . FNA: 96-13, 96-1

Hinweis auf andere Verkündungsblätter Verkündungen im Bundesanzeiger 1027

GERMANY

In Germany there are two main official journals on federal level: one is the *Bundesgesetz-blatt* (Federal Law Journal), the other is the *Bundesanzeiger* which contains an official and an inofficial part with proclamations prescribed by law and various further publications of companies and courts, as well as an overview about the state of legislation.

According to the German Constitution laws and regulations on federal level enter into

force after their publication in the Bundesgesetzblatt.

The printed version of the *Bundesgesetzblatt* is the sole authentic one and it is published by the Federal Ministry of Justice through the Bundesanzeiger Publisher.

The Publishing House is a limited liability company.

The owner of the company is in 35.5% the Federal Republic of Germany represented through the Federal Ministry of Justice. The remaining shares are divided into equal halves belonging to two publishing houses.

The registered office of the company is in Köln where the *Bundesanzeiger* and the *Bundesgesetzblatt* are produced. A small office in Limburg cares for all questions and replies in terms of customs and tax affairs.

The *Bundesanzeiger* is mainly financed from the payments for the publication of various documents of the companies prescribed by law.

The *Bundesgesetzblatt* can be bought by subscription and is sold by retail. It is financed from these revenues.

The *Bundesgesetzblatt* is divided into two parts:

Part I. – Acts of the Parliament, certain decisions by the Constitutional Court prescribed by law, certain publications of internal affairs of the Bundestag and Bundesrat.

Part II. – Publication of international treaties and other corresponding instrument containing international obligations binding on Germany, regulations related to the enforcement of the treaties and regulations in the field of customs.

The Bundesanzeiger can be obtained in four editions:

There is a basic edition (*Stammausgabe*) with the above mentioned publications and there are three extended editions which contain: the basic edition plus central commercial register; basic edition plus balance sheets of companies and deposits; and basic edition plus central commercial register, balance sheets of companies and deposits.

Apart from the official journals of Germany the Publishing House is specialized on professional commentaries and periodicals in different fields of law.

In Germany there are numerous bulletins and various databases for the publication of public procurements. Above a certain threshold-value the public procurement shall be published on the Community level. (TED-EU Database) Below this amount it has to be published in the *Bundesanzeiger*, daily newspapers or professional periodicals. The only exception is that the announcements of the German State have to be published in the *Bundesausschreibungsblatt* (Federal Journal for Public Procurements). Only a few of the 16 Federal States have introduced unified rules for their administration.

The most important decisions of the Constitutional Court and the Supreme Court are published in the *Amtlichen Sammlungen* (Official Digests).

The decisions of other Courts are published in other separate journals.

Parliamentary debate materials are published in the "Bundestags- und Bundesratsdrucksachen" by the Bundesanzeiger Publisher.

Bundesgesetzblatt can be subscribed as printed bulletin and is also kept available to the public on an information network – the access to Part I and Part II is free of charge.

Bundesanzeiger has also a printed and an electronic version on payment of charge.

In order to fulfil the demands of the federal authorities the Federal Ministry of Justice compiles consolidated versions of legal acts after their amendments. Some private editors do similar consolidation and maintain an electronic database, but naturally without legal value.

The Publishing House receives the legal texts from the Ministry of Justice, 5% in printed version and 95% online in different formats. The staff need 2 days after having the permission to print by the Federal Ministry of Justice.

The Company is only a Publishing House without a self-owned printing sector. Printing orders for the professional books and journals are given to several printing houses.

For the publication of *Bundesanzeiger* and *Bundesgesetzblatt* there are long-term contracts with two partners.

The proofreading and structuring for the *Bundesanzeiger* are carried out by the staff of the Publishing House; for the *Bundesgesetzblatt* it is done by the editorial department of the Federal Ministry of Justice.

Bundesanzeiger Publisher is one of the distributors of the publications of the Publications Office of the EU.





ΕΦΗΜΕΡΙΣ ΤΗΣ ΚΥΒΕΡΝΗΣΕΩΣ

ΤΗΣ ΕΛΛΗΝΙΚΗΣ ΔΗΜΟΚΡΑΤΙΑΣ

ΤΕΥΧΟΣ ΔΕΥΤΕΡΟ

Αρ. Φύλλου 950

24 Ιουλίου 2002

Το παρόν ΦΕΚ επανεκτυπώθηκε λόγω λαθών

ΑΠΟΦΑΣΕΙΣ

Αριθ. 7701

Καθορισμός τελών δημοσιεύσεως, τιμής συνδρομής και πώλησης της Εφημερίδος της Κυβερνήσεως (Φ.Ε.Κ.), καθώς και λοιπών ειδών και υπηρεσιών παρεχομένων από το Εθνικό Τυπογραφείο.

Ο ΥΠΟΥΡΓΟΣ ΕΣΩΤΕΡΙΚΩΝ, ΔΗΜ. ΔΙΟΙΚΗΣΗΣ ΚΑΙ ΑΠΟΚΕΝΤΡΩΣΗΣ

Έχοντας υπόψη:

- 1. Τις διατάξεις:
- α) Των άρθρων 9 και 10 του Ν. 301/76 «Περί της εις την Εφημερίδα της Κυβερνήσεως δημοσιευομένης ύλης και ρυθμίσεως θεμάτων αναφερομένων εις την έκδοσιν και κυκλοφορίαν ταύτης» (ΦΕΚ 91/Α/76).
- β) Του άρθρου 26 του Ν. 2738/99 «Συλλογικές διαπραγματεύσεις στη Δημόσια Διοίκηση, μονιμοποιήσεις συμβασιούχων αορίστου χρόνου και άλλες διατάξεις» (ΦΕΚ 180/Α'/99).
- γ) Του Π. Δ/τος 188/96 «Οργανισμός Εθνικού Τυπογραφείου» (ΦΕΚ 146/Α΄/96).
- 2. Την αριθ. 10015/23-11-2001 απόφαση του Υπουρ-

γείου Εσωτερικών, Δημ. Διοίκησης και Αποκέντρωσης «Ρύθμιση θεμάτων τιμολόγησης και κυκλοφορίας των φύλλων της Εφημερίδος της Κυβερνήσεως (Φ.Ε.Κ.) από το Εθνικό Τυπογραφείο» (ΦΕΚ 1568/Β΄/2001).

- 3. Το από 8.7.2002 Πρακτικό της αρμόδιας Επιτροπής, που συγκροτήθηκε με την αριθ. 9256/1.11.2001 απόφαση της Ειδικής Γραμματέως του Εθνικού Τυπογραφείου.
- 4. Το πλήθος και την έκταση των κειμένων που κατά νόμο δημοσιεύονται στην Εφημερίδα της Κυβερνήσεως, καθώς επίσης και την ανάγκη ρύθμισης θεμάτων που αφορούν την έντυπη και ηλεκτρονική διάθεση των φύλλων της Εφημερίδος της Κυβερνήσεως (Φ.Ε.Κ.) σύμφωνα με τα σύγχρονα τεχνολογικά δεδομένα και απαιτήσεις, για την ορθολογική οργάνωση της παραγωγής του Εθνικού Τυπογραφείου και την αποτελεσματικότερη εξυπηρέτηση των πολιτών.
- 5. Το γεγονός, ότι από την απόφαση αυτή δεν προκαλείται δαπάνη σε βάρος του κρατικού προϋπολογισμού, αποφασίζουμε:
- Καθορίζουμε, από 1-1-2003:
- a) Τα τέλη δημοσιευμάτων που καταχωρούνται στο τεύχος Ανωνύμων Εταιρειών και Εταιρειών Περιωρισμένης Ευθύνης της Εφημερίδα της Κυβερνήσεως, ως εξής:

ΑΝΩΝΥΜΕΣ ΕΤΑΙΡΕΙΕΣ	
Περιεχόμενο δημοσιεύματος: Σύσταση εταιρείας, Κωδικοποίηση Καταστατικού, Ισολογισμός κάθε χρήσης, πίνακας επενδύσεων, Συνοπτική μηνιαία κατάσταση Τραπεζών, Άδεια επέκτασης εργασιών Ασφαλιστικής Εταιρείας	440 €
Περιεχόμενο δημοσιεύματος: Ανακοίνωση στοιχείων που η δημοσιότητά τους επιβάλλεται από το Νόμο, καθώς και η τροποποίηση καταστατικού	235 €
ΕΤΑΙΡΕΙΕΣ ΠΕΡΙΩΡΙΣΜΕΝΗΣ ΕΥΘΥΝΗΣ, ΣΥΝ.Π.Ε., ΕΥΡΩΠΑΪΚΩΝ ΟΜΙΛΩΝ ΟΙΚΟΝ. ΣΚΟΠΟΥ ΑΛΛΗΛΑΣΦΑΛΙΣΤΙΚΟΙ ΣΥΝ/ΣΜΟΙ & ΤΑΜΕΙΑ, ΦΙΛΑΝΘΡΩΠΙΚΑ ΣΩΜΑΤΕΙΑ	,
Περιεχόμενο δημοσιεύματος: Σύσταση Εταιρείας, Ισολογισμός κάθε χρήσης, Έκθεση εκτίμησης περιουσιακών στοιχείων και απόφαση έγκρισης	235 €
Περιεχόμενο δημοσιεύματος: Τροποποίηση Καταστατικού (για κάθε συμβολαιογραφική πράξη), ανακοίνωση με συμβολαιογραφική πράξη, με απόφαση Γ.Σ., πρόσκληση Γ.Σ., διάλυση, διόρθωση σφάλματος, κωδικοποίηση, τροποποίηση και κωδικοποίηση με μία συμβολαιογραφική πράξη	117 €
ΔΙΚΑΣΤΙΚΕΣ ΠΡΑΞΕΙΣ	
Περιεχόμενο δημοσιεύματος: Απώλεια τίτλων	88 €
ΔΗΜΟΣΙΕΥΜΑΤΑ Δ΄ ΤΕΥΧΟΥΣ	
Περιεχόμενο δημοσιεύματος: Περίληψη δικαστικής πράξης για παρακατάθεση αποζημίωσης	73 €
Περιεχόμενο δημοσιεύματος: Διόρθωση σφάλματος (όταν ευθύνεται ο καταθέτης της πράξης)	30 €

GREECE

The organization and operation of the National Printing Office is basically regulated by the provisions of Presidental Decree 188/1996. Act 301 defines which legal acts have to be published in the Official Gazette.

The National Printing Office (NPH) is the publisher of legal acts in Greece. The Office is supervised by the Ministry of Interior, Public Administration and Decentralization and is directed by a Special Secretary appointed by joint decision of the Prime Minister and the Minister of Interior, Public Administration and Decentralization.

The Office has general competence in the publication and circulation of the Official Gazette of the Greek State and fulfills the printing demands of public services.

The Official Gazette is the only means of publication of the deeds of the State Bodies. At present the issue authorization, the "circulation license" is exercised by

- the General Clerk of the Ministerial Council for all issues apart from joint-stock companies and limited liability companies,
- the Special Secretary of the National Printing Office for the Issue of Joint-stock Companies and Limited Liability Companies.

The NPH has a self-governed budget which is a part of the State Budget.

The laws and other legal acts are published separately in different issues. There are 12 issues:

- Issue A
 - Laws, Presidential Decrees, Public Contracts, Ministerial Council Deeds
- Normative Decisions of Ministers or other bodies of State Administration
- - Appointments, Official Alterations and Resignations of Public Servants
- Issue D
 - City planning, Compulsory Expropriations, Seashore and Beach Definitions
- Issue of Public Law Legal Entities (P.L.L.E.)
 - Appointments, Official Alterations and Resignations of Public Legal Law Entities and Organizations
- Appendix Issue
 - Deeds and Proclamations of Universities and High Schools, Donations for the Greek State, Fines for Customs Violations, Tables of Competition Results regarding the occupation of posts in public services and of Public Law Legal Entities
- Issue of Joint-stock Companies and Limited Liability Companies (S.A.-LTD) Deeds of Joint-stock Companies and Limited Liability Companies
- Commercial and Industrial Property Card Issue (C.I.P.C.)

 - Trade Marks, Industrial Marks and Patent Diplomas
- Supreme Special Court's Issue (SU.SP.CO)
 - Ratification of the Referendum Results, Uncompromising or Degradation of a Deputy
- Developmental Deeds and Contracts Issue (D.D.C.)
- Company's Investment Subsumption Deeds, Approval Decisions of terms from which the Vessels are ruled when they are registered, according to Legislative Degree 2687/1953.
- Proclamation Issue Supreme Council Personnel Selection All Proclamations of the Supreme Council Personnel Selection for the filling of places of Public Services and Organizations
- Public Contract Proclamations Issue
 - The Summary of the Substantial Elements of State Supply Competition **Proclamations**

The Court decisions of public interest are published in the Official Gazette-Supreme Special Court Issue-with the responsibility of the Supreme Special Court.

Up to 1998 parliamentary debate materials were published by the National Printing Office. Since then the Parliament's Printing Office has been established and it is responsible for the publication of the Minutes of the Parliament's Meeting.

The National Printing House does not have competence in distribution of the Official Gazette. The Official Gazette is available for the citizens in printed and electronic form and on CD, as well.

The printed version of the Gazette is disposed in the Central Office and in nine local branch offices all over Greece.

All issues are available on the Internet and Issues A, B, C and Issue P.L.L.E. since 1994.

The Gazette is available on CD since 2000, Issues A, B, C and Issue P.L.L.E. since 1994.

The Official Gazette Issues of previous years are disposed upon payment in photocopies by the Library Office of the National Printing House.

All Issues-apart from Issue P.L.L.E.-are gratis disposed via Internet in the Ministries, Public Bodies and Organizations and Public Law Legal Entities.

The prices of the Official Gazette are defined each year by the decision of the Minister of Interior, Public Administration and Decentralization upon the initiative of the Special Secretary of the NPH.

The National Printing House receives the legal texts to be published in printed form and if the volume exceeds a certain amount, in electronic form, as well.

The texts are submitted to the NPH through the Ministry of Justice. The minimum period between the submission and the publication depends on several circumstances. Nevertheless, the shortest minimum period is one day.

The printing activities are carried out by the Office.

MAGYAR



KÖZLÖNY

A MAGYAR KÖZTÁRSASÁG HIVATALOS LAPJA

Budapest, 2004. január 5., hétfő

1. szám

Ára: 1932,-Ft

	TARTAL	UMJ	JEG	YZEK
-				

TARTALOMJEGYZÉK]	Oldal
1/2004. (I. 5.) Korm. r.	Az Európai Unió strukturális alapjaiból és Kohéziós Alapjából származó támogatások hazai felhasználásáért felelős intézményekről	2
2/2004. (I. 5.) Korm. r.	A pénzügyminiszter feladat- és hatásköréről szóló 140/2002. (VI. 28.) Korm. rendelet módosításáról	10
1/2004. (I. 5.) ESZCSM r.	A betegjogi, az ellátottjogi és a gyermekjogi képviselő működésének feltételeiről	10
1/2004. (I. 5.) FVM r.	A fontos és bizalmas munkakörökről, valamint a biztonsági ellenőrzés szintjéről szóló 35/1997. (V. 13.) FM rendelet módosításáról	14
1/2004. (I. 5.) GKM r.	Az ömlesztett árut szállító tengeri hajók biztonságos rakodásáról	17
2/2004. (I. 5.) GKM r.	Az úszólétesítmények megfelelőségét vizsgáló, ellenőrző és tanúsító szervezetek elismeréséről, kijelöléséről és felhatalmazásáról	23
1/2004. (I. 5.) PM r.	A kincstári rendszer működésével kapcsolatos pénzügyi szolgálta- tások teljesítésének rendjéről szóló 36/1999. (XII. 27.) PM rendelet módosításáról	36
1/2004. (I. 5.) KE h.	Egyetemi tanári felmentésekről	96
1, 200 11 (11 01) 112 111	A Nemzeti Kegyeleti Bizottság határozatai	96
	Tájékoztató az Országos Érdekegyeztető Tanács 2003. november 28-i üléséről	98
	Tájékoztató az Országos Érdekegyeztető Tanács 2003. december 9-i üléséről	99

HUNGARY

Act No. 11/1987 on Legislation, Decree No. 148/2002 of 1 July on the Prime Minister's Office and a few other regulations stipulate the publication of legal acts in Hungary.

As the official publisher of the Hungarian legislation, the Hungarian Official Journal Publisher (Magyar Hivatalos Közlönykiadó – MHK) performs its activity subordinated to the Government, under the direct supervision of the Prime Minister's Office.

The Official Journal of Hungary (Magyar Közlöny) is edited by the Prime Minister's Office with the participation of the Editorial Board.

The MHK is a public limited company since 1994, whose sole owner is the Hungarian Government.

The publication of the Official Journal is financed from its revenues.

The Official Journal of Hungary is published according to the principle of a single edition. It is composed of six parts:

Part I – Personnel decisions

Part II – Acts of the Parliament, decrees

Part III – Decisions of the Parliament, certain desicions of the Constitutional Court prescribed by law

Part IV - Directives, decisions of the Supreme Court for the unity of law

Part V – Announcements, public notices

Part VI – International agreements

If the volume is too comprehensive for one edition, the regular edition is supplemented with a further volume.

Following the earlier tradition the Publishing House has been publishing the Official Notices as a supplement to the Official Journal, since 1998, which contains public recruitment competitions, information on training and vocational training, reports, announcements, public notices.

In addition to the Official Journal of Hungary, Ministries and national authorities also publish their official bulletins to facilitate their duties. These bulletins carry the sector related measures and information (decrees, decisions, announcements) to all those concerned. The official bulletins are edited by the legal department of the relevant ministry or national authority and the editorial board of the bulletin in question.

Public procurements are published in the Bulletin of Public Procurements (Közbeszerzési Értesítő) by the Hungarian Official Journal Publisher. An on-line version of the bulletin is also available for the public.

Court decisions of public interest are published in the periodical, Repertory of Court decisions, but not by *MHK*. Court decisions are also available on the Internet. Private printing houses also publish collections of them.

Parliamentary documents are published on-line by the Office of the Hungarian Parliament.

Apart from subscription delivery, various channels are used for distribution: books and periodical publications may be purchased either in the Journal Store, or alternatively, orders via mail, fax or through the Online Store are fulfilled as cash on delivery consignment. The Publishing House has also contracted with several books and newspaper retailers in Budapest and in the country.

The last five issues of the Official Journal are also available free of charge on the website of the Publishing House.

Based on the existing law databases, various repertories of legal acts, either comprehensive and topic-based collections, are published with great accuracy and in a short time period.

Under the supervision of the Minister of Justice and the Minister for the Prime Minister' Office, the Official Compilation of Acts and Decrees, a set of several volumes is published every year, while the Official Compilation of Law in Force comes out every five years (the latter is to appear on CD-ROM).

The consolidated version of a legal act has to be published in the *Magyar Közlöny* if it is decided so by the Hungarian Parliament or by the Government.

Consolidated texts of legal acts are published on CD-ROM and come out on the basis f monthly update.

The Publishing House receives the legal texts to be published both in printed and electronic versions. Depending on the volume and the urgency, the staff needs about 1-2 days to prepare the texts.

The Publisher has its own Printing House located in *Lajosmizse*, not far from the Publisher's seat in Budapest.

The editorial staff of the Publisher administers counter-editing, proofreading and the final preview of the master copy and performs all other activities related to the publishing.

The MHK publishes a directory of Community legislation published in the OJ L series.

Translation of the most important Hungarian legal acts is available on the website of the relevant Ministries.

Number 20 277



iris oifisiúil

Published by Authority Tuesday, 9th MARCH, 2004

PLEASE NOTE

THAT IRIS OIFIGIÚIL CAN NOW
BE VIEWED ON THE INTERNET
BY
VISITING THE WEB SITE

www.irisoifigiuil.ie

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND SCIENCE

The Minister for Education and Science has made the following Statutory Instrument:

S.I. No. 681 of 2003.

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION (GRANTS FOR ANNUAL SCHEMES OF COMMITTEES) REGULATIONS 2002.

Copies of this Statutory Instrument are on sale at the Government Publications Sale Office, Sun Alliance House, Molesworth Street, Dublin 2.

Price €2.03.

[1]

IRELAND

Iris Oifigiúil is the Official Irish State Gazette and is published twice a week (Tuesdays and Fridays). In addition to the biweekly publication of *Iris Oifigiúil*, a number of supplements are published at varying times during the year.

Iris Oifigiúil is the official means used by the Government for announcing appointments to public offices and publishing proclamations; statutory instruments;

appointment of receivers to companies; etc.

Prima Facie evidence of any proclamation, order, rule, regulation, bye-law, or other official document may be given in any legal proceedings by production of a copy of the *Iris* purported to contain such matter (Documentary Evidence Act 1925 ss.3–4). Notices in relation to many matters concerning companies must be published in the *Iris* within six weeks of the delivery to the Registrar of Companies.

Iris Oifigiúil replaced the Dublin Gazette in 1922 and became the medium for the publication of governmental, statutory and other notices formerly published in the Gazette.

The *Printing & Election Services* of the *Government Supplies Agency* is responsible for the publication of the Iris.

The Government Supplies Agency is a business unit of the Office of Public Works (OPW).

The OPW was established to carry out a wide variety of public works, such as the construction of public buildings, roads, bridges and harbours. The present day OPW has retained many of its original functions and has aquired new roles. It is responsible for the restoration and preservation of many prestigious state buildings, the acquisition and fitting out of office accomodation for Government Departments, the construction and maintenance of Garda stations and prisons and the arterial drainage and flood relief programme.

The Government Supplies Agency is divided into three sections:

Procurement Services manages the central procurement of a variety of goods, supplies and services on behalf of the Government.

Publication Services sells Government Publications directly to the public through the Government Publications Sale office and a mail order service.

Printing & Election Services is responsible for

- the central procurement of printing and binding services for Government Departments, Offices and Agencies,
- the provision of a service to Election Returning Officers in relation to the supply of election stationery and printing services,

- the publication of Iris Oifigiúil.

All Acts and Statutory Instruments are available in the Irish Statute Book. The Irish Statute Book database comprises the Acts of the Oireachtas, Statutory Instruments and Chronological Tables of the Statutes for the period 1922–2002.

The official version of the Acts of the *Oireachtas* (the Irish Parliament) and Statutory Instruments remains the printed version published by The Stationery Office.

In Ireland a website has been developed as part of the Government Action Plan on Implementing the Information Society in the country. The site is designed to be a central facility for all public sector contracting authorities to advertise *procurement opportunities* and award notices. The site is managed by the National Public Procurement Policy Unit (NPPPU) of the Department of Finance.

The Debates of the Houses of the *Oireachtas* are put online as soon as the file are available. This is normally within 24 hours of the debate.

Spediz. abb. post. 45% - art. 2, comma 20/b Legge 23-12-1996, n. 662 - Filiale di Roma CO BBLC TAIR

Anno 145° — Numero 36

GAZZETTA &

UFFICIALE

DELLA REPUBBLICA ITALIANA

PARTE PRIMA

Roma - Venerdì, 13 febbraio 2004

SI PUBBLICA TUTTI I GIORNI NON FESTIVI

DIREZIONE E REDAZIONE PRESSO IL MINISTERO DELLA GIUSTIZIA - UFFICIO PUBBLICAZIONE LEGGI E DECRETI - VIA ARENULA 70 - 00100 ROMA Amministrazione presso l'istituto poligrafico e zecca dello stato - libreria dello stato - piazza G. Verdi 10 - 00100 roma - centralino 06 85081

- La Gazzetta Ufficiale, oltre alla Serie generale, pubblica quattro Serie speciali, ciascuna contraddistinta con autonoma numerazione:
 - 1ª Serie speciale: Corte costituzionale (pubblicata il mercoledì)
 - 2ª Serie speciale: Comunità europee (pubblicata il lunedì e il giovedì)
 - 3ª Serie speciale: Regioni (pubblicata il sabato)
 - 4ª Serie speciale: Concorsi ed esami (pubblicata il martedì e il venerdì)

AVVISO AGLI ABBONATI

Si rammenta che la campagna per il rinnovo degli abbonamenti 2004 avrà termine il 28 febbraio e che la sospensione degli invii agli abbonati, che entro tale data non avranno corrisposto i relativi canoni, avrà effetto dal 15 marzo 2004.

Si pregano comunque gli abbonati che non intendano effettuare il rinnovo di darne comunicazione via fax al Settore Gestione *Gazzetta Ufficiale* (n. 06-8508-2520) ovvero al proprio fornitore.

SOMMARIO

LEGGI ED ALTRI ATTI NORMATIVI

DECRETO LEGISLATIVO 21 gennaio 2004, n. 35.

Norme di attuazione dello statuto speciale della Regione siciliana relative alla partecipazione del Presidente della Regione alle riunioni del Consiglio dei Ministri Pag. 5

DECRETI, DELIBERE E ORDINANZE MINISTERIALI

Ministero dell'economia e delle finanze

DECRETO 24 dicembre 2003.

 DECRETO 24 dicembre 2003.

Approvazione, per l'anno 2004, dei prezzi di vendita, in abbonamento ed a fascicoli separati, della Raccolta ufficiale degli atti normativi della Repubblica italiana Pag. 8

Ministero della salute

DECRETO 12 dicembre 2003.

Ministero delle politiche agricole e forestali

DECRETO 1º dicembre 2003.

ITALY

In Italy the regulation of the publication of legal acts is extensive.

Bureau No. 3 of the Department of Justice—the Bureau responsible for the publication of Acts and Decisions carries out its activity in the framework of the Ministry of Justice. It is responsible for the enforcement of the numerous legal acts providing for the publication of Acts, other Statutory Instruments and official documents in the *Gazzetta Ufficiale*, the Official Gazette of Italy. To enhance the fulfillment of this responsibility the above Ministry is responsible for the "Directorate and Editorial Office of the Official Gazette".

In Italy the printed version is the official version of legal acts. The major characteristics of the present structure and the Gazette originate from the period of 1985–87. The objective of the system organized at that time was to provide citizens with a better and easier accessiblity to Acts and other documents. Due to this reform the Official Gazette was devided into two parts: Part I and II. Part I is sometimes subdivided into more parts:

"General Series" - Acts and Decisions

"Special Part" – according to the different issues:

- Minutes and documentation of the cases of the Constitutional Court

- Community Legislation

- Laws and other Statutory Instruments of the Italian regions and provinces

- Invitations to Tenders

Part II publishes documents, minutes, court and commercial notices.

Court decisions are not published in the Italian Official Gazette; this is the responsibilty of the Chancelleries of the various Courts of Justice.

The Parliamentary documents are accessible via the Publishing House of the House of Representatives and the Senate.

The Official Gazette is available both in printed and electronic version.

Significant part of the publishing and distribution work of the Official Gazette is performed by "GURITEL". This service is the responsibility of a separate department. As a result of the work of this department the authentic texts of the documents published in the Official Gazette are accessible on the Internet in proper time. The National Printing House and Reproduction Institution–joining the eGovernment action plan–implemented the Government project according to which access to the Italian Official Gazette via Internet is free. The complete text of the documents published in the Official Gazette can be read for 60 days free of charge.

The legal acts and documents to be published are sent by the different government agencies to the Directorate and Editorial Office of the Gazette, which after checking sends it on to the Printing House. The Printing House is under control of the so called Printing and Reproduction Institution and the State Mint Ltds. Making-up, pagination and printing are regulated by law. The proofreading and proof sheets are prepared by the Printing House, and immediately forwarded to the Publishing House for correction.

Pursuant to law, the Official Gazette has two days for preparing proofreading and proof sheets, so that the paper would be published during the afternoon each weekday as defined by law. This decision played a significant role in eliminating some problems concerning delays caused by the corrections of proofreading and proof sheets—a prerequisite to printing after "checking and endorsement". Eliminating delays has been conductive to typesetting, launching and distribution in time. However the significant development of printing techniques and information technology have considerably promoted to these results.

During the reorganization and modernization process the Printing and Reproduction Institution has been privatized. The successor private limited company is under control of the Ministry of Finance and Economy, the sole shareholder of the company capital.

In the case of the Official Gazette the Institution receives share from the sales, subscriptions and advertising fees. The Ministry of Finance and Economy fixes all prices (of sales, subscriptions and advertising fees) with respect to the opinion of the Ministry of Justice.

LATVIJAS REPUBLIKAS OFICIĀLAIS LAIKRAKSTS

Saturs

0	4	m	m	A	m	4	П

	$\overline{}$
Ministru kabinetā	
 Noteikumi Nr.164 "Grozījumi Ministru kabineta 2003.gada 1.jūlija noteikumos Nr.365 "Noteikumi par atlīdzības par audžuģimenes pienākumu pildīšanu apmēru, tā pārskatīšanas kārtību, kā arī atlīdzības piešķiršanas un izmaksas kārtību"" Noteikumi Nr.165 "Noteikumi par pesticīdu atlieku kontroli 	
dzīvnieku izcelsmes produktos"	A2
 Noteikumi Nr.166 "Dzīvnieku barības marķēšanas kārtība" Noteikumi Nr.168 "Veterināro zāļu marķēšanas, izplatīšanas un kontroles noteikumi". Ministru prezidenta rikojums Nr.122 "Par O.Spurdziņa komandējumu" 	A5
Ministru prezidenta rīkojums Nr.123 "Par rīcības komiteju komplekso sporta sacensību "Latvijas Olimpiāde" sarīkošanai"	A1/
Spiria sacerisiou Latvijas olinipiade sainkosaira	M.T.
un ģimenes lietu padomi""	A14
Ministru prezidenta rīkojums Nr.125 "Par A.Ludviku"	A15
— Ministru prezidenta rīkojums Nr.126 "Par R.Pīka komandējumiem"	A1
— Ministru prezidenta rīkojums Nr.127 "Par A.Slaktera komandējumiem"	
Ministru prezidenta rīkojums Nr.128 "Par V.Muižnieces komandējumu" Ministru prezidenta rīkojums Nr.129 "Par darba grupu personas apliecību	A1
koncepcijas izstrādei"	A1
Satversmes tiesā	
— Par likuma "Par obligāto sociālo apdrošināšanu pret nelaimes gadījumiem darbā un arodslimībām" 17.panta piektās dalas atbilstību	

Latvijas Republikas Satversmes 91. un 109.pantam....

Struktūrās

Valsts galvenā pārtikas un veterinārā inspektora rīkojums Nr.69 "Par veselības sertifikātu zooloģiskā dārza dzīvnieku izvešanai uz Lielbritāniju" ... A16

Pašvaldīhās

•	actararac	
	- Dagdas pilsētas domes saistošie noteikumi Nr.1 "Par Dagdas pilsētas	
	teritorijas plānojumu"	A17
_	- Rīgas domes saistošie noteikumi Nr.61 "Personu, kurām nepieciešama	
	pašvaldības palīdzība dzīvokļa jautājumu risināšanā, reģistrācijas un	
	pašvaldības palīdzības sniegšanas kārtība"	A18
_	- Alūksnes rajona Trapenes pagasta padomes saistošie noteikumi Nr.3	
	"Par Tranenes nagasta teritorijas plānojumu"	Δ19

Valsts amatpersonu deklarācijas

Par amatiem, nekustamajiem īpašumiem, transportlīdzekļiem, ienākumiem, piederošajām kapitāla daļām, parādsaistībām, skaidrās un bezskaidrās naudas uzkrājumiem — Aleksandrs Gilmans, Deniss Gorba, Jānis Karpovičs, Jānis Ločmelis, Jānis Ozols, Guntis Plisums......

Informācija

Valsts prezidente

Saņemot akreditācijas vēstuli no Japānas ārkārtējā un pilnvarotā	vēstniekaA22
Saņemot akreditācijas vēstuli no Lietuvas ārkārtējā un pilnvarotā	vēstniekaA22
Mazākumtautību informācijas un kultūras nodaļas atklāšanā	
Rīgā 2004.gada 26.martā	A22
Valsts valodas komisijas rīkotajā tulkotāju seminārā	
Rīgas pilī 2004.gada 29.martā	A22
	Saņemot akreditācijas vēstuli no Japānas ārkārtējā un pilnvarotā Saņemot akreditācijas vēstuli no Lietuvas ārkārtējā un pilnvarotā Mazākumtautību informācijas un kultūras nodaļas atklāšanā Rīgā 2004.gada 26.martā

Ministru kabinetā

 Ministru kabineta 2004.gada 25.mar 	ta sēdēA2	20
 Valsts sekretāru 2004.gada 25.marta 	ı sanāksmēA2	21

Diplomātija

Latvijas delegācija vakar, 29.martā, Vašingtonā, ASV valsts departamentā,

papiasinasanai veiutiaja ceremonja Baitaja nama 29.marta un uzturesies Väsingtonā līdz 30.martatara.

28.martā arī aizsardzības ministrs Atis Slakteris ieradās Vašingtonā, lai kā Latvijas oficiālās delegācijas pārstāvis Ministru prezidenta vadībā piedalītos NATO pievienošanās dokumentu iesniegšanā Valsts departamentā, kas nozīmē Latvijas pievienošanās dokumentu iesniegšanā Valsts departamentā, kas nozīmē Latvijas pievienošanas Ziemeļatlantijas līguma organizācijai. Latvijas delejašcijas sastāvā ir arī Ārlietu ministrijas valsts sekretārs Māris Riekstijas. "Tas ir sasniegums, kas pierāda, ka mēs spējam izdarīt un kopā panākt daudz. Tagad pāris dienu laikā sakārtota arī normatīvā bāze. NATO ir politiska apviemba, Latvija politiski kļūs stiprāka, un tas būs neatgriezeniski, kas uzliek arī atbildību par pasaulē notiekošajiem procesiem. Latvijas iedzīvotāji un valsts iegūs drosību, tai sekos finansu ieguldījumu pieaugums, un līdz ar to ieguvējs būs ikviens iedzīvotājis, "uzsvēra A.Slakteri, sauno Ziemeļatlantijas līguma organizācijas dalībvalstu NATO pievienošanās instrumentu iesniegšana ASV Valsts departamentā, kas nozīmē Latvijas pievienošanos Ziemeļatlantijas līguma organizācijai.

Pul ksten 10 pēc Vašingtonas laika (18 pēc Latvijas senatoriem.

la i ka) Ministru prezidents kopā ar pārējo valdību vadītājiem tikās ar ASV senatoriem.

No pulk sten 12.30 līdz 12.40 (20.30-20.40 pēc Latvija s laika) notika NATO pievienošanās instrumentu iesniegšana ASV valsts sekretāram Kolinam Pauelam.

Līdz pulk sten 14 (līdz 22 pēc Latvijas laika) ilga valdību vadītāju pusdienas ar K.Pauelu. Pēc pusdienām valdību vadītāju un delegāciju pārstāvij devās uz Balto namu, lai tiktos ar ASV prezidentu Džordžu Busū.

No pulk sten 15.20 līdz 15.35 (23.20-23.35 pēc Latvijas laika) notika jauno NATO dalībvalstu valdību vadītāju preses brīfings.

No pulk sten 15.40 līdz 16.10 (23.40-00.10 pēc Latvijas laika).

No pulk sten 15.40 līdz 16.10 (23.40-00.10 pēc Latvijas laika).

No pulk sten 15.40 līdz 16.10 (24.40-00.10 pēc Latvijas laika).

No pulk sten 17 līdz 18 (1-2 pēc Latvijas laika) Nacionālajā preses klubā notika valdību vadītāju preses konference.

No 18.30 līdz 20.30 (2.30-4.30 pēc Latvijas laika) notika NATO valstu vēstnieku rikota pieņemšana par godu jauno dalībvalstu valdību vadītāju vizitei un NATO paplašināšanai.

Ärlietu ministrijas preses centrs,

Ārlietu ministrijas preses centrs, Ārzsardzības ministrijas Sabiedrisko attiecību departaments, Valsts kancelejas Komunikācijas departaments

Latvijas Nacionālo bruņoto spēku komandieris viceadmirālis Gaidis Andrejs Zeibots .A22 Nacionālo bruņoto spēku karavīriem 2004.gada 29.martā...

<u>ludinā</u> i u m

— Uzņēmumu reģistra ziņas	
jaundibināti uzņēmumi	A2
izmainas uznēmumos	A2
likvidēti uzņēmumi	
Paziņojumi kreditoriem, maksātnespējas, bankroti	A2
Pazinojumi akcionariem, dalībniekiem, biedriem.	
— Uzņēmumu pārskati	A2
— Ziedojumu pārskati	
— Amatu konkursi	
— Mantojumu zinas.	
— Uzaicinājumi uz tiesu	
Uzaicinājumi nokārtot saistības	
Laulāto mantiskās attiecības	
— Paziņojumi par teritorijas plānošanu	
— Dažādi sludinājumi	
— Izsoles	
— Privatizācijas zinas	
Piegādes un darbu izpildes pasūtījumi	
— lepirkumi valsts un pašvaldību vajadzībām	
lepirkumi sabiedrisko pakalpojumu uzņēmumiem	
— Pilnvaru atsaukumi	
— Dokumentu, zīmogu atsaukumi	

Latvijas Bankā

Konvertējamo valūtu un zelta kursi (29.03.2004., 30.03.2004.) ..

Šodien vēl:

"lestājoties NATO, mēs no teritoriālās pašaizsardzības sistēmas pārejam uz militāro sistēmu.

– NATO integrācijas izpilddirektors, brigādes ģenerālis Raimonds Graube



Vakar Vašingtonā tika iesniegti NATO iestāšanās dokumenti.

"Ir iārada mehānisms, kas ļautu daļēji kompensēt iespējamo cenu kāpumu nākotnē, un jāpalielina ar nodokļiem neapliekamais minimums,"

– vakar atzina finanšu ministrs Oskars Spurdziņš.

Latviias eksporta politikas pamatnostādnu projekts.



Laikraksta A un B daļai un pielikumiem kopā sant.

A20

LATVIA

The publication of legal acts in Latvia is regulated by the Law on Enforcement of Legal Acts. The *Latvijas Vēstnesis* is the Official Journal of Latvia.

The Publishing House of the Official Journal is a private limited company, 100% owned by the State. The Publishing House is subordinated to the Ministry of Justice.

The publication of the journal is published from the sales revenue.

Latvijas Vēstnesis is published four times a week since 1993.

In 2004 the format and the structure of the journal underwent a transformation in order to offer a better arranged structure for the Official Gazette.

The Official Journal is divided into three parts:

- Laws, regulations, normative acts of the State Bodies, parliamentary debates
- Announcements by legal entities prescribed by law
- Editorial part (articles, news, interview)

Public Procurements are published on the Internet site of the Public Procurement Office and also in a printed version.

The court decisions of public interest are published as a weekly supplement to the Official Gazette.

The Publishing House offers two types of subscriptions to the Official Gazette: subscriptions to the printed version or to the on-line version.

They can also be obtained as single.

The Publisher is planning to operate an electronic database of consolidated law.

The legal texts to be published are transmitted both in printed and electronic versions to the Publisher. Acts of the Parliament are published in the next issue of the Official Gazette, regulations are published in three days.

The Publisher does not have printing facilities. All the pre-press work is carried out by the Publisher.

The translation of national legislation is partly available.



2004 m. kovo 16 d. Nr. 40 Kaina 2,60 Lt

Oficialus leidinys

Valstybės imonė Seimo leidykla "Valstybės žinios"

TURINYS

I skyrius. LIETUVOS RESPUBLIKOS ĮSTATYMAI

1289.	Lietuvos Respublikos įstatymas dėl Europos konvencijų gyvūnų apsaugos klausimais ratifikavimo	
	(2003 12 18 Nr. IX-1923)	3
1290.	Lietuvos Respublikos įstatymas dėl Tarptautinės konvencijos dėl kovos su pinigų padirbinėjimu ir jos protokolų ratifikavimo	
	(2004 01 27 Nr. IX-1979)	3
1291.	Lietuvos Respublikos įstatymas dėl Konvencijos dėl privačių įdarbinimo agentūrų ratifikavimo	
	(2004 02 12 Nr. IX-2016)	4
1292.	Lietuvos Respublikos įstatymas dėl Šiaurės Atlanto sutarties ratifikavimo	
	(2004 03 10 Nr. IX-2054)	4
	II skyrius. LIETUVOS RESPUBLIKOS TARPTAUTINĖS SUTARTYS	
1293.	Europos konvencija dėl ūkinės paskirties gyvūnų apsaugos	
	(1976 03 10)	4
1294.	Europos konvencijos dėl ūkinės paskirties gyvūnų apsaugos pakeitimų protokolas	
	(1992 02 06)	7
1295.	Europos konvencija dėl gyvūnų apsaugos tarptautinio vežimo metu	
	(1968 12 13)	
1296.	Europos konvencija dėl skerdžiamų gyvūnų apsaugos	
	(1979 05 10)	14
1297.	Tarptautinė konvencija dėl kovos su pinigų padirbinėjimu	
	(1929 04 20)	18
1298.	Konvencija dėl privačių įdarbinimo agentūrų	
1000	(1997 06 19)	29
1299.	Šiaurės Atlanto sutartis	
	(1949 04 04)	32
	Lietuvos Respublikos užsienio reikalų ministerijos pranešimas	34
	W. I DECDUDITION DECEMBER DECEMBER	
	IV skyrius. RESPUBLIKOS PREZIDENTO DEKRETAI	
1300.	Dekretas dėl Šaukoto herbo tvirtinimo	
	(2004 03 10 Nr. 394)	34
1301.	Dekretas dėl atostogų suteikimo Nacionalinės teismų administracijos direktoriui	
	(2004 03 10 Nr. 395)	35
1302.	Dekretas dėl Lietuvos Respublikos Ministro Pirmininko pavadavimo	
	(2004 03 10 Nr. 396)	35
1303.	Dekretas dėl siūlymo pradėti apkaltos procesą Lietuvos Respublikos Seimo nariui Artūrui Paulauskui	
	(2004 03 12 Nr. 397)	35
	V skyrius. LIETUVOS RESPUBLIKOS VYRIAUSYBĖS NUTARIMAI	
1304	Nutarimas dėl kreipimosi į Lietuvos Respublikos Prezidentą su prašymu pateikti Lietuvos Respublikos Seimui ratifikuoti	
1304.	Tarptautinės muitinės procedūrų supaprastinimo ir suderinimo konvencijos pakeitimo protokolą ir jo I bei II priedėlius	
	(2004 03 09 Nr. 266)	37

LITHUANIA

The publication of laws in Lithuania is regulated by the Law on Procedure of Publication and Coming Into Force of Republic of Lithuania Laws and Other Legal Acts (April 6, 1993. No 1-119, amended by May 18, 1999. No. VIII-1184)

The *Valstybės žinios*, the Official Journal of the Republic of Lithuania is published by the Publishing House of the Parliament of Lithuania. This Publishing House is a state enterprise.

The Publishing House has its own budget within the state budget.

The Official Gazette includes the following chapters:

Chapter I. The Laws of the Republic of Lithuania

Chapter II. The International Agreements of the Republic of the Lithania

Chapter III. Other Legal Acts passed by the Republic of Lithuanian Seimas

Chapter IV. The Decrees of the President of the Republic of Lithuania

Chapter V. Government Resolutions of the Republic of Lithuania

Chapter VI. Decisions, Resolutions and Conclusions of the Constitutional Court

Chapter VII. The Orders and other Normative Legal Acts of Ministers, heads of Government Institutions and heads of other State Governing Institutions and other Normative Acts confirmed by Laws, and the Decisions by the Bank of Lithuania Board

The editorial office of the Official Gazette publishes in separate issues "Information Reports", an Annex to the Gazette.

Public procurement tenders are not published in the Official Gazette.

The parliamentary debate materials are published in "Seimas Chronicle" in English and Lithuanian language. The draft laws are published in separate issues "Information reports" as annex to Official Journal. The draft laws are published per desicion of Seimas for public deliberation.

The Bank of Lithuania, Ministries, Departments and Government Institutions and other State Governing Institutions, Courts and other law protection institutions, district and city boards, higher administrative unit governing institutions, other legal entities belonging to the state administration must subscribe and keep on file issues of the Official Gazette.

The Official Gazette can be subscribed or is available at newsagents.

Official collections of legal acts may be published in the Official Gazette on the basis of published legal acts. These collections may be published by the services of Republic of Lithuania Seimas, Lithuanian Republic Government, Republic of Lithuania Ministry of Justice and also, by the Official Gazette.

The legal acts must appear in the Internet pages of Seimas as well as of the institution which has adopted them, within 3 days of their formal publication in the Official Gazette.

The legal texts to be published are submitted to the Publishing House both in printed and electronical version. Texts are put in order of importance.

The Official Gazette in the Lithuanian language is published no less frequently than twice a week (8 times a month). If necessary, the "Official Gazette" may be published more frequently, as well.

The publications are edited and proofread in the Office. Pursuant to law, printing-houses have no right to proofread the texts they receive. Publications are printed according to the contracts with the printing houses.

The "Official Gazette" may be published in other languages to publicize legal acts. A legal act published in other than Lithuanian language must indicate that it is a translation from Lithuanian.

1443

MEMORIAL

Journal Officiel du Grand-Duché de Luxembourg



MEMORIAL

Amtsblatt des Großherzogtums Luxemburg

RECUEIL DE LEGISLATION

A — N° 68 11 juin 1999

Sommaire

COUR DES COMPTES ET COMPTABILITE DE L'ETAT

Loi du 8 juin 1999 portant organisation de la Cour des comptes page	1444
Loi du 8 juin 1999	
a) sur le Budget, la Comptabilité et la Trésorerie de l'Etat;	
 b) portant modification de la loi du 10 mars 1969 portant institution d'une inspection générale des finances; 	
c) portant modification de la loi modifiée du 16 août 1966 portant organisation des cadres de la trésorerie de l'Etat, de la caisse générale de l'Etat et du service du contrôle de la comptabilité des communes et de certains établissements publics	1448

LUXEMBURG

The Constitution and several other legal acts regulate the publication order of legal acts in Luxemburg.

According to the provisions of the Constitution, legal acts enter into force in the grand duchy in four days after their publication in the *Mémorial*. The day of publication is also included in the deadline, unless a longer or shorter deadline is prescribed by law.

The Official Journal of the Grand Duchy of Luxemburg (Journal Official du Grand-Duché de Luxembourg) is published by the Central Legislation Office. The Office carries out its activity in the framework of the Prime Minister's Office, under the controll of the Minister for Parliamentary Relations.

The printing expenses of the Official Journal are mainly financed from the state budgetary estimates, the rest is covered by the Municipal Expenditure Fund of the Ministry of Interior.

The *Mémorial* is published in three volumes.

Mémorial A – Collection of Legal Acts: Acts of the Parliament, decisions of the Constitutional Court, International Agreements.

It is published 1-4 times a week.

Mémorial B – Collection of Business Documents and Documents of the Public Administration: Summaries of individual decisions of the public administration, circulars, opinions, reports. This volume contains all the texts whose publication are prescribed by law or are decided by the relevant Minister.

Mémorial C - Collection of Documents of Companies and Associations

Parliamentary documents are published by the Parliament. (Le Compte rendu de Chambre). They are also available on the website of the Parliament.

The bodies of public administration and public institutions order their subscriptions free of charge through the Publisher, while the subscriptions of municipialities burden the Municipal Expenditure Fund of the Ministry of Interior.

Private individuals can subscribe at the Printing House charged with the printing of the Official Journal.

According to the decision of the European Counsil meeting, held in Feira in 2000, the eLuxemburg or eGovernment Programme was launched. Within the framework of the Programme the Central Legislation Office was charged together with other state bodies to create a website, on which legal texts can be available for the public.

Besides legal acts published in the *Mémorial A* since 1980, several other documents became available in the first phase of the Programme finished in 2002. Since then the central database has been widening with databases of the Ministries.

A consolidated version of a legal act (if it is not adopted as a whole again by the Parliament) is not a legally binding one (it serves only for information), even in the case, it has been published in the *Mémorial A*.

The texts to be published in the *Mémorial* are transmitted by the Departments of the Ministries either in printed and electronic version to the Office, who forwarded them to the Printing House charged with the printing of the journal.

The Printing House prepares the proofs, which are sent back by the Office to the relevant Ministries for proofreading. Soon afterwards the permission for printing is given out by the Minister in question. The Office compiles the *Mémorial* taking into account the urgency of publication of the texts to be published.





Gazzetta tal-Gvern ta' Malta

The Malta Government Gazette

It-Tlieta, 11 ta' Novembru, 2003 Tuesday, 11th November, 2003 Pubblikata b'Awtorità Published by Authority

Anno Domini 2003

NRU. XIV ANNO DOMINI 2003

No. XIV

Proklama

Proclamation

MILL-AĠENT PRESIDENT

TA' MALTA

(L.S.)

BY THE ACTING PRESIDENT OF MALTA

(Iff.) GEORGE HYZLER Agent President

(L.S.)

BILLI huwa pprovdut bl-artikolu 49 tal-Kostituzzjoni ta' Malta illi kull meta d-detentur tal-kariga ta' President ikun assenti minn Malta l-funzjonijiet moghtija lilu bl-imsemmija Kostituzzjoni ghandhom jigu moqdija minn dik il-persuna li l-Prim Ministru, wara konsultazzjoni mal-Kap ta' l-Oppozizzjoni, jista' jahtar;

U BILLI l-President huwa assenti minn Malta;

U BILLI fl-10 ta' Novembru, 2003, il-Prim Ministru hatarni Agent President ghal matul iż-żmien li fih il-President ikun assenti minn Malta;

U BILLI jiena hadt u ffirmajt kif imiss il-ģurament talkariga kif preskritt bl-artikolu 50 ta' l-imsemmija Kostituzzjoni;

ISSA, GHALHEKK, JIENA, GEORGE HYZLER, K.O.M., TABIB, qieghed hawnhekk navża u nipproklama li assumejt illum skond l-imsemmija Kostituzzjoni l-funzjonijiet ta' President ta' Malta.

Maghmula fil-Palazz, Valletta, illum, 10 ta' Novembru, 2003.

B'Awtorità.

(Iff.) Eddie Fenech Adami Prim Ministru (Sd.) GEORGE HYZLER
Acting President

WHEREAS it is provided by section 49 of the Constitution of Malta that whenever the holder of the office of President is absent from Malta the functions conferred upon him by the said Constitution shall be performed by such person as the Prime Minister, after consultation with the Leader of the Opposition, may appoint;

AND WHEREAS the President is absent from Malta;

AND WHEREAS on the 10th day of November, 2003, the Prime Minister appointed me Acting President for such time as the President is absent from Malta;

AND WHEREAS I have duly taken and subscribed the oath of office as prescribed by section 50 of the said Constitution;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GEORGE HYZLER, K.O.M., DOCTOR OF MEDICINE, do hereby notify and proclaim that I have this day under the said Constitution assumed the functions of President of Malta.

Made at the Palace, Valletta, this 10th day of November, 2003.

By Authority.

(Sd.) Eddie Fenech Adami Prime Minister

MALTA

The publication of laws of Malta in the Malta Government Gazette is regulated by sections 72 and 124 of the Constitution of Malta and by the section 3 (1) of the Interpretation Act.

The Publishing House of the Malta Government Gazette is the Department of Information.

The Gazette has been in circulation since 1813.

It is issued bilingually (in Maltese and English).

The Gazette is financed by the Government from the Consolidated Fund, through an annual allocation, as approved by Parliament in the yearly financial estimates. No business ventures are involved.

The Gazette contains various Government Notices, Calls for applications for Government posts, publication of Trade Marks, grant of Letters Patent, Court Decrees etc.

On the other hand, laws passed by the Parliament and Bills laid on the table of the House of Representatives are published separately as supplements to the Gazette.

Public procurement tenders are managed by the Contracts' Department (in the Ministry of Finance) and are published together with Calls for Tenders in the Gazette. Tenders are also published on the website of the Department of Information.

Court Sentences are accessible to the media and are also available on-line. Court Decisions are also published by the Department.

Parliamentary debates are published in printed form by the Parliament which also issues online bills, acts passed by the Parliament and parliamentary questions.

The Gazette is published bilingually on a regular basis at least twice a week, many times exceeding this minimum. Since December 2003, the Department of Information has been putting the Gazette online on a regular basis. The service is free of charge.

The Gazette can be obtained by the general public either by purchasing it from the Department or by subscription.

Consolidated versions of legal acts are compiled by the Ministry of Justice and Home Affairs.

The legal texts to be published originate from the Office of the Attorney General where editing, proofreading etc. are carried out. It is very difficult to state the minimum period of time the Government Printing Press receives the texts before publication, as this depends on various factors such as the volume of text, urgency of publication, etc.

Laws and subsidiary legislation are printed at the Government Printing Press which is a separate Government Department catering for all Government printing requirements, naturally including the Gazette.



DZIENNIK USTAW

RZECZYPOSPOLITEJ POLSKIEJ

Warszawa, dnia 5 marca 2004 r.

Nr 35

TREŚĆ: Poz.:

USTAWA

OUTAWA	
305 — z dnia 29 stycznia 2004 r. o zmianie ustawy o świadczeniach rodzinnych	1834
ROZPORZĄDZENIA RADY MINISTRÓW:	
306 — z dnia 24 lutego 2004 r. w sprawie przekazywania informacji o realizacji zadań związanych ze służbą zastępczą	1834
307 — z dnia 24 lutego 2004 r. w sprawie komisji wojewódzkich do spraw służby zastępczej i komisji do spraw służby zastępczej	1841
308 — z dnia 24 lutego 2004 r. w sprawie wynagrodzenia osób wchodzących w skład komisji wojewódzkiej do spraw służby zastępczej i komisji do spraw służby zastępczej	
309 — z dnia 2 marca 2004 r. zmieniające rozporządzenie w sprawie opłat związanych z ochroną wynalazków, wzorów użytkowych, wzorów przemysłowych, znaków towarowych, oznaczeń geograficznych i topografii układów scalonych	
ROZPORZĄDZENIE PREZESA RADY MINISTRÓW	
310 — z dnia 27 lutego 2004 r. w sprawie stanowisk pracy związanych z obronnością kraju	1851
ROZPORZĄDZENIA:	
311 — Ministra Finansów z dnia 1 marca 2004 r. w sprawie szczegółowych warunków prowadze- nia składów podatkowych	1852
312 — Ministra Finansów z dnia 1 marca 2004 r. w sprawie zezwoleń na prowadzenie składu podatkowego, działalności jako zarejestrowany handlowiec oraz niezarejestrowany handlowiec, a także na wykonywanie czynności w charakterze przedstawiciela	
podatkowego	1854
pieczenia akcyzowego	
gań metrologicznych, którym powinny odpowiadać liczniki energii elektrycznej czynnej prądu przemiennego, klasy dokładności 0,2; 0,5; 1 i 2	
316 — Ministra Gospodarki, Pracy i Polityki Społecznej z dnia 10 lutego 2004 r. w sprawie wy- magań metrologicznych, którym powinny odpowiadać wagi samochodowe do ważenia	1879
pojazdów w ruchu	10/9
przywozem na polski obszar celny niektórych produktów stalowych	1885
i przetworów mlecznych, szczegółowych zasad jego prowadzenia oraz wzoru informacji rocznej o ilości wykorzystanego mleka	
319 — Ministra Rolnictwa i Rozwoju Wsi z dnia 6 lutego 2004 r. w sprawie wzorów formularzy do przekazywania informacji przez podmioty skupujące, wzorów zestawień zbiorczych	
oraz sposobu prowadzenia przez podmioty skupujące ewidencji ilości skupionego mleka i zawartości tłuszczu w tym mleku	1889
 320 — Ministra Rolnictwa i Rozwoju Wsi z dnia 11 lutego 2004 r. zmieniające rozporządzenie w sprawie pasz leczniczych	1896
w sprawie wykazu podmiotów uprawnionych do zakupu produktów leczniczych wetery-	1897
 322 — Ministra Rolnictwa i Rozwoju Wsi z dnia 26 lutego 2004 r. w sprawie wzoru imiennego upoważnienia do wykonywania czynności kontrolnych	1897
aponalina do regionalita de princoso Roma o mejor de la composición de la composició	.507

POLAND

In Poland the Act of on the Publication of Legal Acts and Certain Provisions (20 July, 2000) provides for the publication of legal acts. The publication of international agreements is provided for by the Act on the Publication of International Agreements (14 April, 2000). According to law, legal acts are to be published in three government journals: in the State Gazette of the Republic of Poland, in the Official Journal of the Republic of Poland: the Monitor Polski and Monitor Polski B.

The Legislative Centre of the Government (RCL)-established on 1 January, 2000-is responsible for the publication of the State Gazette of the Republic of Poland and the Official Journal of the Republic of Poland (Monitor Polski).

Earlier the publication of the Gazette was under control of the Legal and Legislative Department of the Presidential Office of the Council of Ministers (KPRM). RCL is a budgetary organisation. KPRM may entrust a business organisation with relevant expertise with the printing and distribution work of the State Gazette, *Monitor Polski* and *Monitor Polski B*. Such business organisation with relevant expertise is the Service Centre for the Presidential Office of the Council of Ministers operating its own Printing and Publishing House.

The State Gazette and *Monitor Polski* are financed from budgetary funds as well as the subscription fees.

The Legal Gazette of the Republic of Poland publishes the following issues:

- The Constitution;
- Acts:
- Law-decrees of the President of the Republic of Poland;
- Decrees of the President of the Republic, of the President of the Council of Ministers, of the Ministers, of the Chairmen of the Committees defined by law who may be members of the Council of Ministers, or the National Radio and Television Organisations;
- Amendments to the provisions mentioned in 1–4;
- Decisions of the Constitutional Court on the interpretation of law;
- Decisions of the Council of Ministers in respect of the Amendment of certain Ministerial Decrees.

Furthermore, the Legal Gazette announces state of war or any other emergency; signing peace; results of referendums and votes on the Amendments of the Constitution; revoking Parliamentary commissions; Parliamentary elections; election of the President of the Republic; actions, as well as partial or full mobilization of the armed forces; natural disasters and any other documents prescribed by law.

In the Official Journal of the Republic of Poland, the Monitor Polski the following issues are published:

- Decrees (Resolutions) of the President of the Republic on the basis of certain Acts;
- Resolutions and Decrees of the Council of Ministers according to the relevant provisions;
- Amendments to the provisions of 1-2;
- Decisions of the Constitutional Court on the legal acts having published or to be published in *Monitor Polski*.

Other texts to be published in *Monitor Polski:* Parliamentary Decisions; Decisions of the Lower and the Upper Houses; Decisions and Resolutions of the President of the Republic, as well as certain Resolutions of the Constitutional Court.

Decisions of the Supreme Court as well as other legal communications, notices and announcements of public interest, if provided so by law.

In the Official Journal of the Republic of Poland, the *Monitor Polski B* the followings are published:

- Financial Reports as prescribed by the Statutory Instruments on Accounting

- Announcements and notices of public interest of entrepreneurs, if law does not prescribe their publication in the Court or Economic Observers; other legal announcements, e.g. communications and notices of public interest of the different organisations, institutions and private persons, if provided so by law.

Publishing announcements and notices of public interest defined in 1–2 are subject to

charges.

The President of the Council of Ministers decides on the charges separately.

There are also special journals published by the Ministers or the Central Government Department Head.

The regional journals publish the legal acts of local and regional interest, under control of the Head of the Region.

Publishing the Public Procurement Gazette is the responsibility of the Office of Public Procurements. They prepare the publication, which is then printed in the Service Centre for the Presidential Office of the Council of Ministers.

Court notices of public interest-especially those of particular public interest-are published together among the notices of the Supreme Court, the Public Administration Court and other Courts.

Parliamentary documents are published by the Publishing House of *Seim* in the *Parliamentary Journal* and in the *Parliamentary Chronicle*. These publications are available in the Bookshop of the Parliament.

Distribution of *Monitor Polski* and *Monitor Polski B* takes place via subscription at places under control of KPRM, including the headquaters of certain government agencies, courts and other organs. The publications can also be obtained as single. The online versions of the official journals are also available.

The Gazette publishes consolidated law as well, provided that it is decided so by the Speaker of the *Seim* and it is prepared by the Department of Legal Services to the Chancellary of *Seim*.

The Service Centre of the Presidential Office of the Council of Ministers (KPRM) participates in the publication process of the official journals – in respect of technology – as a budgetary organ, enriching the central budget with its profit oriented activity. The Service Centre of KPRM operates a modern photolab and printing house. Operation of the Service Centre of KPRM is regulated by the Decree of the Head of the Presidential Office of the Council of Ministers.

The Legislative Centre of the Government (RCL) plays an important role in the legislative procedure. The legal experts of the Centre have the responsibility to give their professional opinion on Bills of the Government and Ministerial Decrees, etc.

The Centre usually receives the texts to be published in paper form. There is no regulation providing for the time of publishing. The shortest period was 12 hours.



Número 66

I - A SÉRIE

Esta 1.ª série do *Diário* da *República* é apenas constituída pela parte A

DIÁRIO DA REPÚBLICA

SUMÁRIO

Ministério da Justiça	ı	Decreto Legislativo Regional n.º 7/2004/A:
Decreto-Lei n.º 53/2004: No uso da autorização legislativa concedida pela Lei n.º 39/2003, de 22 de Agosto, aprova o Código da Insolvência e da Recuperação de Empresas	1402	Estabelece medidas preventivas aplicáveis na zona de implantação do eixo viário entre o Aeroporto João Paulo II e Vila Franca do Campo, na ilha de São Miguel 1473 Região Autónoma da Madeira
Decreto-Lei n.º 54/2004: Estabece o regime jurídico das sociedades de administradores da insolvência	1465	Decreto Legislativo Regional n.º 3/2004/M: Adapta à Região Autónoma da Madeira o Código do Trabalho
Ministério da Segurança Social e do Trabalho Decreto-Lei n.º 55/2004: Define, no âmbito do regime de protecção social privado do sector bancário, a modalidade e os termos da transferência dos direitos à pensão prevista nos n.º 2 e 3 do artigo 11.º do anexo viii do Estatuto dos Funcionários das Comunidades Europeias Decreto-Lei n.º 56/2004: Altera o Decreto-Lei n.º 181/97, de 24 de Julho, que define os termos da transferência dos direitos à pensão adquiridos a título das actividades exercidas no âmbito dos regimes das Comunidades Europeias na sequência do início ou cessação de funções	1466 1469	Nota. — Foi publicado um suplemento ao Diário da República, n.º 50, de 28 de Fevereiro de 2004, inserindo o seguinte: Assembleia da República Declaração de Rectificação n.º 26-A/2004: De ter sido rectificada a Lei n.º 107-B/2003 (Orçamento do Estado para 2004), publicada no 2.º suplemento ao Diário da República, 1.ª série-A, n.º 301, de 31 de Dezembro de 2003 1088-(2) Nota. — Foi publicado um 2.º suplemento ao Diário da República, n.º 50, de 28 de Fevereiro de 2004, inserindo o seguinte:
Região Autónoma dos Açores Decreto Legislativo Regional n.º 5/2004/A: Classifica como monumento natural regional a caldeira Velha, na ilha de São Miguel	1470	Assembleia da República Lei Orgânica n.º 1-A/2004: Possibilita a inscrição no recenseamento eleitoral de nacionais dos novos países aderentes
Decreto Legislativo Regional n.º 6/2004/A: Classifica como monumento natural regional a gruta das Torres, na ilha do Pico	1471	à União Europeia legalmente residentes em Portugal, por forma a assegurar o exercício efectivo do direito de voto na eleição para o Parlamento Europeu a ocorrer em Junho de 2004

PORTUGAL

The publication of the Official Journal of Portugal, "Diário da República" is regulated by the Constitution of the Portuguese Republic, by a decree and a normative order.

The Publishing House of the "Diário da República" is a company whose capital funds are solely public since 1999. The origin of this company goes back to 1972, when the fusion of two enterprises resulted in a public enterprise: *INCM*.

The enterprise's revenues provided by subscriptions, publication of advertisements and selling self-produced products and services, grant the funds to finance the Official Journal.

In Portugal according to the subject of the legal acts the Journal is divided into three separate series according to the subject:

The first serie contains laws, decrees, international conventions, resolutions of Courts of Justice and the results of the elections.

The second serie contains all the main legal acts of Public Administration.

The third serie comprises the main legal acts of registered companies, calls for applications for posts in public employment, other decisions taken by several entities and documents which have to be published by law.

The public procurement tenders are published according to the provisions of Decree-law No. 245/2003 of 7 October, according to the Commission Directive No. 2001/78/CE of 13 September.

Decisions of Courts are published in the first and second series of the Official Journal. The debates of the National Assembly are published in the "Diárió da Assembleia da República" which is available on the Internet, as well.

The Official Journal can be procured by the general public either by subscription or by purchasing it from the *INCM* stores.

Pursuant to law, judges and magistrates of the Prosecution Council receive the "Diárió da República" and the "Diárió da Assembleia da República" free of charge.

The company receives the legal texts to be published electronically or in printed version according to the contracts made between the parties.

The minimum period the Publishing House receives the text before the publication is:

5 working days – for the first serie

7 working days – for the second serie

8 working days – for the third serie

The *INCM* has its own Printing House. The company is one of the major publishing houses of the country.

Editing, structuring and proofreading are carried out by the staff of the Publishing

INCM is one of the two distributors of the Official Journal of the European Union in Portugal.



Elektronická

Zbierka zákonov

SLOVENSKEJ REPUBLIKY

Čiastka 1

Uverejnená 1. januára 1993

OBSAH:

- 1. Zákon Národnej rady Slovenskej republiky o Zbierke zákonov Slovenskej republiky
- 2. Zákon Národnej rady Slovenskej republiky, ktorým sa mení a dopĺňa zákon Slovenskej národnej rady č. 347/1990 Zb. o organizácii ministerstiev a ostatných ústredných orgánov Slovenskej republiky v znení neskorších predpisov
- 3. Zá $k\,o\,n\,$ Národnej rady Slovenskej republiky o zriadení armády Slovenskej republiky
- 4. Zákon Národnej rady Slovenskej republiky, ktorým sa mení a dopĺňa zákon č. 60/1965 Zb. o prokuratúre v znení neskorších predpisov

SLOVAKIA

The publication of the Statutes of the Slovak Republic is regulated by Act 1/1993 Z. z of multiple amendments.

The Statutes of the Slovak Republic is published by the Ministry of Justice, specifically by the Department of Publications.

Editing is financed from budgetary funds. Printing and distribution of the State Gazette are financed by a private company, not from budgetary funds.

All Statutory Instruments of national scope are published in the State Gazette.

The Supreme Court of the Slovakian Republic decides which court decisions shall be published. All court decisions will be available on the Internet in the near future. Publication on the Internet will be financed by the Ministry of Justice.

Part of the parliamentary documentation is also available on the Internet, however, they are not considered as official publications of the relevant area.

The Statutes of the Slovak Republic is distributed by a private company.

Only some of the Acts are published in a consolidated version. The consolidated version is prepared by the Speaker on authorization of the Parliament.

The Publishing House receives the text to be published in three copies signed by the competent persons, as well as electronically. The publication shall take place within 15 days, although this is not observed in practice.

The Ministry of Justice has not got a Printing House of appropriate capacity, however, the entire editing and correction work is performed by the Ministry.

Only legal acts of highly importance are translated, usually into the English and French languages.

Uradnilist Republike Slovenije

Internet: http://www.uradni-list.si

e-pošta: info@uradni-list.si

Št. 72

Ljubljana, petek 25. 7. 2003

Cena 1540 SIT

ISSN 1318-0576

Leto XIII

VLADA

3508. Uredba o preiskovanju letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov

Na podlagi tretjega odstavka 141. člena in v zvezi s 197. členom zakona o letalstvu (Uradni list RS, št. 18/01, 110/02 in 114/02) izdaja Vlada Republike Slovenije

UREDBO

o preiskovanju letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov

I. SPLOŠNE DOLOČBE

1. člen

(obseg urejanja)

Ta uredba določa in ureja preiskovanje letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov, način obveščanja, delo preiskovalnega organa ter komisije, obveščanje pristojnih organov o navedenih dogodkih ter obveznosti letalskega osebja in drugega strokovnega osebja v tej zvezi, zagotavljanje sredstev in logistične podpore preiskovalnemu organu ter sankcije za kršitve te uredbe.

2. člen

(cilj preiskave)

Temeljni cilj preiskave letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov je izboljšanje varnosti zračnega prometa z zagotavljanjem hitrega opravljanja preiskav, zaradi preprečevanja letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov v prihodnosti.

3. člen

(pomen izrazov in kratic)

- (1) Posamezni izrazi in kratice, uporabljeni v tej uredbi, imajo naslednji pomen:
- 1. AIP (Aeronautical Information Publication) je Zbornik letalskih informacij Republike Slovenije, ki ga izdaja Uprava Republike Slovenije za civilno letalstvo (v nadaljnjem besedilu: uprava).
- 2. Glavni preiskovalec (investigator in charge) je oseba, ki je odgovorna za organizacijo, vodenje in nadzor preiskave in je imenovana na podlagi svoje usposobljenosti v skladu z določbo tretjega odstavka 138. člena zakona o letalstvu (Uradni list RS, št. 18/01, 110/02 in 114/02; v nadaljnjem besedilu: zakon).
- 3. Operator zrakoplova (aircraft operator) je vsaka fizična oseba, pravna oseba, samostojni podjetnik posamez-

nik ali organ, ki namerava upravljati oziroma upravlja z zrakoplovom/vi.

- 4. Preiskava (investigation) je postopek, ki se izvaja zaradi preprečevanja letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov. Vključuje zbiranje podatkov in ugotavljanje dejstev ter njihovo analizo, sestavo sklepov oziroma zaključkov o letalski nesreči, vključno z ugotovitvijo vzroka ali vzrokov letalske nesreče, resnega incidenta oziroma incidenta ter po potrebi objavo varnostnih priporočil.
- 5. Registrator leta (flight recorder) je kakršnakoli snemalna naprava, nameščena v zrakoplovu, ki olajšuje preiskavo letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov.
- 6. Smrtna poškodba (fatal injury) pomeni poškodbo, ki jo dobi oseba v letalski nesreči in katere posledica je njena smrt v 30 dneh od dneva nesreče.
- 7. Težka poškodba (serious injury) pomeni poškodbo, ki jo dobi oseba v letalski nesreči in ki:
- zahteva hospitalizacijo za več kot 48 ur in se začne v sedmih dneh od dneva dobljene poškodbe ali
- ji sledi zlom katerekoli kosti (razen preprostih zlomov prstov na roki, nogi ali zloma nosu) ali
- vključuje raztrganine, ki povzročajo težke krvavitve, poškodbe živcev, mišic ali kit ali
- vključuje poškodbe katerega koli notranjega organa
- vključuje opekline druge ali tretje stopnje ali vsako opeklino, ki prizadene več kot 5% telesne površine ali
- vključuje dokazano izpostavljenost kužnim snovem ali škodljivemu sevanju.
- 8. Varnostno priporočilo (safety recommendation) pomeni vsak predlog preiskovalnega organa, ki vodi tehnično preiskavo in temelji na podatkih, izhajajočih iz preiskave. Njegov namen je preprečevanje letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov v prihodnosti.
- 9. Vzroki (causes) so dejanja ali njihova opustitev, dogodki ali okoliščine oziroma njihova kombinacija, ki so povzročili letalsko nesrečo, resni incident ali incident.
- (2) Ostali izrazi in kratice, uporabljeni v tej uredbi, imajo enak pomen, kot ga določa zakon.

II. PREISKOVALNI ORGAN IN NJEGOVE NALOGE

4. člen

(preiskovalni organ)

- (1) Preiskovalni organ je pri svojem delu neodvisen in samostojen. Organiziran je kot samostojna (posebna) organizacijska enota pri ministrstvu, pristojnem za promet (v nadaljnjem besedilu: ministrstvo).
- (2) Naloga preiskovalnega organa je preiskovanje letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in incidentov z namenom preprečevanja letalskih nesreč, resnih incidentov in inci-

SLOVENIA

The publication of national regulations and other instruments is regulated by the Constitution of the Republic of Slovenia (1991). According to it's provisions, regulations must be published in the national Official Gazette before they enter into force.

The Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia d.o.o. company is only the Publisher of the national gazette titled Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia, whereas the Government Office for Legislation is its Editor. The Relations between the Publisher and the Editor are regulated by the Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia Act (1996). The Act also stipulates the contents and the manner of publishing. The conditions of publishing in the Gazette, the manner and the order of priority of publications are in greater detail defined by the Regulation of the Government of Slovenia on Publishing in the Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia (2003).

The Company has been engaged in the publication of legislation for almost sixty years and underwent a change of ownership in 1996. It has a status of a public company and its majority owner is the state.

The Company is financed out of its own revenues. The majority part of income originates from the subscriptions to the Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia.

The Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia is issued according to the principle of a single edition. It comprises the following three parts:

- Regulations Section: national legislation, decisions of the Constitutional Court and regulations of local communities;
- Official Publications Section: publications of courts, public procurement tenders, tenders and publications of commercial companies;
- International Treaties Section.

The new Public Procurement Act, passed in December 2003, newly stipulates the entities which are obligated to publish public procurement tenders. According to the new Act, public procurement tenders will be exclusively published in electronic version on the information portal of the respective state authority.

The publications of courts can be found in the Official Publications Section of the Official Gazette. These publications are related to the registrations of companies, execution and securing of claims, litigious an non-litigious civil matters, as well as bankruptcies of companies.

The parliamentary debates can be read on the website of the National Assembly.

The Company offers two types of subscriptions to the Official Gazette: subscription to the printed version or to the online version. The printed version is the only official and legally binding text.

The staff of the Company does the entire preparative work for printing (proofreading, print layout etc.). Legal texts to be published are delivered to the publisher both in the printed and electronic versions. The Official Gazette of the Republic of Slovenia Act stipulates the following: "... in the first issue to follow, if timely submitted..." or foresees the announcement of texts in the case they exceed 100 pages.

In practice, the legal texts to be published must as a rule be received by the Publisher until Monday and they will be entered into the Friday edition. The Publisher waits for the Government's decisions until Thursday and if they are urgent, they will also published in the Friday edition. If the volume is too comprehensive for one edition, the regular weekly edition is supplemented with an extra edition. In the last year this became a rule.

The printing activities are carried out by a Printing House pursuant to the contract between the Publisher and the Printing House.

In Slovenia there is a State institution (Government Translation and Editing Office) intended for the translation of national legislation.



BOLETÍN OFICIAL DEL ESTADO

AÑO CCCXLIV

LUNES 15 DE MARZO DE 2004

NÚMERO 64

ESTE NÚMERO CONSTA DE DOS FASCÍCULOS (Fascículo segundo encartado)

FASCÍCULO PRIMERO

SUMARIO

I. Disposiciones generales

MINISTERIO DE HACIENDA

PÁGINA

Contratación administrativa.—Orden HAC/664/2004, de 9 de marzo, por la que se establecen los mecanismos de coordinación entre los registros voluntarios de licitadores, en el marco de la Administración General del Estado, sus Organismos Autónomos, entidades gestoras y servicios comunes de la Seguridad Social y demás entidades públicas estatales.

11433

Impuesto sobre el Valor Añadido.—Orden HAC/665/2004, de 9 de marzo, por la que se regulan determinados aspectos de la gestión recaudatoria de los ingresos de IVA de operadores extracomunitarios que prestan servicios por vía electrónica a consumidores finales y se modifica la Orden de 27 de diciembre de 1991, por la que se dictan instrucciones acerca del régimen económico financiero de la Agencia Estatal de Administración Tributaria.

11434



SPAIN

The publication of laws in Spain is regulated by Decree of the Presidency of the Government 1511/1986.

The publisher of the Official Spanish Journal (BOE) is a public organisation subordinated to the Ministry of Presidency, which is in charge of printing, distributing and selling of the Official Journal and the Official Gazette of the Register of Companies.

The Autonomous Organisation Spanish Official Journal also publishes reports,

compilations, legal texts and offprints of provisions of special interest.

It creates and maintains legal databases from the Journal and the Official Gazette of the Register of Companies.

The Journal does not need budget resources from the Ministry of Finance. The Organisation has its own resources whose composition is the following:

Announcements: 79% Subscriptions: 11% Other sales: 10%.

The structure of the Official Journal is the following:

Section I – Laws and General Regulations

Section II - Human Resources, Recruitments and Appointments

Section III – Secondary legislation

Section IV – Announcements by the Courts of Justice

Section V – Announcement of Tenders

Public procurement tenders are announced by the Ministries and public agencies who pay to BOE the fees established by law. Ministries and Agencies however rebound the fees on the companies who win the tender.

Court decisions are published free of charge in Section IV of the Official Journal.

Parliamentary debates are published by the Printing House of the BOE, but it does not form a part of the Journal.

The Journal can be obtained by subscriptions or as single in bookshops.

The free distribution does not play any role.

The BOE begun to publish acts in force on the Internet.

At present BOE receives legal texts to be published from the Government Secretariat electronically or in printed form.

In the future a new system will be introduced in order to transmit legal texts electronically to the Government Secretariat for registration and from this point to the Printing House for printing.

The Spanish Official Journal has its own Printing House.

In an urgent case legal texts are published on the same or the following day BOE receives them. In other cases the Printing House produces proofs in order to revise the text, after it the final text will be prepared and then signed by the King and the President. In this case the Printing House needs at least three days.

SVENSK FÖRFATTNINGSSAMLING



SFS 2003 Nr 580 och 581

Innehåll

Utkom från trycket den 23 september 2003

- 580 Statsbidrag till kommuner som tillämpar maxtaxa inom förskoleverksamhet och skolbarnsomsorg, ändring i förordningen 2001:160
- 581 Miljöhänsyn i jordbruket, ändring i förordningen 1998:915

SWEDEN

The publication of laws in Sweden are regulated by the Act of Publication (1976) and by a Government Ordinance (1976). In accordance with the Act of Publication, laws are published in the Swedish Code of Statutes (Svensk författningssamling – SFS). Ordinances are usually published in the Code, as well.

The Director-General for Administrative affairs at the Ministry of Justice is legally responsible for the publication of the Swedish Code of Statutes. The publishing is administered from the Office of the Swedish Code of Statutes. The Office is a part of the Division for Legal and Linguistic Draft Revision at the Ministry of Justice. Apart from handling the publication of the Code, the Office is also responsible for several legal data bases within the Government Offices. At present, two Administrative Officers work at the Office. At the Division there are also five lawyers. Their main task is to review statutes and other proposals to be submitted to the Swedish Parliament. The purpose of the revision is to make sure that the laws and decisions are well-reasoned, lucid and uniform in legal technique and they do not violate the Constitution.

Laws and Government Ordinances are published in the Swedish Code of Statutes. Regulations given by the authorities are published in the code of statutes of each authority.

The Office does not publish public procurement tenders, as the EU Official Journal is used for that purpose.

The Swedish National Courts Administration, an authority handling administrative issues for the court, publishes the court decisions of public interest in printed form. At the moment the National Courts Administration publishes decisions of the Supreme Court, the Supreme Administrative Court, the Courts of Appeal and the Labour Court. The Market court is responsible for publishing its own decisions.

The Swedish Parliament (*Riksdagen*) publishes the debate materials. The debate materials are published in form of questions to the Government and answers to the questions from different Ministers.

In Sweden there is no prescribed routine for publishing acts in force. However, the Ministry of Justice publishes a book with a list of acts in force yearly.

At the final stage of the legislative process, a proof print of a new law is ordered from the Printing Office by the person in charge of the legislative process. When the work is done and after necessary proofreading, the Director General for Legal affairs concerned or somebody appointed by him, approves the statute for printing and sends it to the Office of the Swedish Code of Statutes. At the Office a final check on all formal details is performed by the Administrative Officers and of the lawyers at the Division. They give a final approval for printing and the proof is delivered to the Printing Office. This procedure takes place once a week, usually on Thuesdays. The new statutes will then be printed in the Code the following week.

The Swedish Government purchases the services of printing and distribution of the Swedish Code of Statutes on the open market every third year. Liaison is then maintained between the Office of Swedish Code of Statutes and the Printing Office throughout the period. There is a special agreement between the Government and the Printing Office. The provider has to cover all costs of the publication and the Government, however, undertakes to buy some 600 subscriptions for the libraries of the municipalities.

In Sweden, there are no official translated versions of acts and ordinances, but a few acts are unofficially translated into other languages and are available on the website of the Government.

Staatsblad van het Koninkrijk der Nederlanden



Jaargang 1989

1

Besluit van 6 januari 1989, houdende regels inzake de uitgifte van het Staatsblad en de Staatscourant (Besluit uitgifte Staatsblad en Staatscourant)

Wij Beatrix, bij de gratie Gods, Koningin der Nederlanden, Prinses van Oranje-Nassau, enz. enz. enz.

Op de voordracht van Onze Minister van Justitie van 22 juli 1988, nr. 343/688, gedaan mede namens Onze Minister van Binnenlandse Zaken; Gelet op artikel 89 van de Grondwet en artikel 8 van de Bekendmakingswet (Stb. 1988, 18);

De Raad van State gehoord (advies van 28 oktober 1988, nr. WO3.88 0432);

Gezien het nader rapport van Onze Ministeries van Justitie en van Birinenlandse Zaken van 30 december 1988, nr. 580/288;

Hehben goedgevonden en verstaan

HOOFDSTUK 1. INLEIDENDE BEPALINGEN

Artikel 1

In dit besluit wordt verstaan onder:

- a. Onze Minister:
- in hoofdstuk 2: Onze Minister van Justitie;
- in hoofdstuk 3: Onze Minister van Binnenlandse Zaken;
- b. de uitgever: het in artikel 2 bedoelde bedrijf.

Artikel 2

Onze Ministers van Justitie en van Binnenlandse Zaken sluiten overeenkomsten tot het produceren, uitgeven en aan het publiek ter beschikking stellen van het Staatsblad onderscheidenlijk van de Staatscourant met een bedrijf dat ervoor zorg draagt daartoe over voldoende technische en organisatorische middelen te beschikken.

Artikel 3



Onze Ministers van Justitie en van Binnenlandse Zaken bereiden de nodige vervangende voorzieningen voor, voor het geval door gebreken in

THE NETHERLANDS

The publication of laws and regulations is embedded in the Publication Law. Its provisions say how and where official publications have to be published. As a principal laws are published in the *Staatsblad* and regulations are published in the *Staatscourant*.

Furthermore, there are some other legal acts concerning the publication of certain acts of companies. The law specifies that all companies that went bankrupt, must be published

in the *Staatscourant*. The same applies to yearly publication of balance sheets.

In the past the Publishing House (Sdu) was a governmental organisation. In 1988 the Sdu became a limited liability company. So the Sdu was transformed into a commercial company, but the shares are 100% owned by the Government. Since the Sdu performs more economically than similar publishing companies, now the Government is willing to sell a part of the company.

Most official publications are paid by the users. For laws the customer pays 12 euro-

cents per page in case of subscription and 26 cents in single sales. For regulations:

Ministries can publish for free and the rest (local governments etc.) must pay. The principle is the same as in case of advertising. The more text you publish the more you pay. Prices are calculated in millimetre/column.

Besides the *Staatsblad* and *Staatscourant* there are other official publications of the *Sdu*:

Kamerstukken: All official correspondence of the Government

Kamervragen: All official questions to the Ministers

Handelingen: The full reports of meetings of the Parliament

Tractenblad: International Agreements

All are produced by publishing on demanded techniques and are available via Internet. Public procurement tenders are published in two ways. Above a certain amount they are published in EUmedia. Otherwise Dutch law specifies where they have to be published: in the *Staatscourant* or in any other national trade journal.

Court decisions are not published by *Sdu*, but by the Court itself. The Dutch Court Organisation uses a separate website for that purpose.

Parliamentary debate materials are published in the *Handelingen* by the Sdu.

All publications are sold by using normal marketing techniques, like leaflets, e-marketing and advertisements. Customers can order by phone or via Internet.

Since Sdu has a monopoly on several official publications, it has to negotiate all the prices with the Government.

Sdu receives the legal texts to be published in various ways, depending upon the deadline (in how much time the Government wants them published). When 48 hours is required, the Government supplies the Publishing House with a digital copy.

Sdu has sold its printing capacity. There is only one exception and that is for the official publications. They are produced by printing on demand. This is carried out in the Publishing House, including prepress activities. The main reason is not economical, but the importance of delivery time and the interface with the administrative system of *Sdu*.



The London Gazette

Published by Authority.

The Gazette is registered at the General Post Office for transmission by Inland Post as a newspaper. The postage rate to places within the United Kingdom, for each copy, is one halfpenny for the first 6 ozs., and an additional halfpenny for each subsequent 6 ozs. or part thereof. For places abroad the rate is a halfpenny for every 2 ounces, except in the case of Canada, to which the Canadian Magazine Postage rate applies.

* * For Table of Contents, see last page.

TUESDAY, 30 DECEMBER, 1919.

Privy Council Office, December 30, 1919.

THE following Statutes made on the 18th December, 1919, by the Governing Body of Jesus College, Cambridge, altering and amending certain Statutes of the College, have been submitted for the approval of His Majesty in Council, and notice of their having been so submitted is published in accordance with the provisions of "The Universities of Oxford and Cambridge Act, 1877 '':-

STATUTES to amend the Statutes of Jesus Cambridge, College, which amending vampridge, which amending were duly made at a College Statutes Meeting, being a Meeting of the Governing Body of the College, specially summoned for the purpose, and held on the 18th day of December, 1919, and Meeting Meeting, having been passed at such Meeting by the votes of more than two-thirds of the number of persons present and voting, are now submitted for the approval of His Majesty the King in Council.

We, the Master or Keeper and Fellows and Scholars of Jesus College, in the University of Cambridge, in exercise of the powers given to us by the Universities of Oxford and Cambridge Act, 1877, do hereby alter and amend the existing Statutes of our College in manner

Statute VII of the Vacating of Fellowships. By substituting in section 8 of this Statute,

as amended by the Statute made by the College on the 5th day of December, 1912, and approved by His Majesty the King in Council on the 24th day of June, 1913, the date "June, 1930," for the date "June, 1920."

Statute XX of the Distribution of the Revenue.

By adding to this Statute the following para-

graph:—
"There shall be paid to each Fellow, to the
Master and to each person who shall have acquired a right to a pension under Statute XV, such an allowance in respect of income tax on the dividends payable under this Statute and on the pensions payable under Statute XV as the Master and Fellows shall determine."

Given under our Common Seal this 18th day of December, 1919.

Privy Council Office, 30th December, 1919.

The following Amendments to the Statutes of Queen's College, Oxford, made by the Governing Body of the College on the 19th December, 1919, have been submitted for the approval of His Majesty in Council, and notice of their having been so submitted is published in accordance with the provisions of "The in accordance with the provisions of "The Universities of Oxford and Cambridge Act,

Whereas it is expedient to raise the emolu-

UNITED KINGDOM

Her Majesty's Stationery Office (HMSO) is headed by the Controller and operates as part of the Cabinet Office under the ministerial control of the Minister for the Cabinet Office.

Her Majesty the Queen appoints the Controller of *HMSO* by Letters Patent as the Queen's Printer of Acts of Parliament, and to hold and exercise all rights and privileges in connection with copyrights owned by the Crown. The Controller is also appointed as the Government Printer of Northern Ireland.

Although part of the Cabinet Office, *HMSO* remains a separate legal entity carrying out statutory functions which are laid directly upon *HMSO*, the Queen's Printer of Acts of Parliament and the Government Printer of Northern Ireland.

HMSO manages and regulates the use and the licensing of the re-use of all information produced by Government which is protected by Crown copyright.

HMSO oversees the printing and publication of all UK legislation and related official materials in traditional print formats and via the Internet, and advises Government Departments on all aspects of official publishing. HMSO also manages the Government's Information Asset Register.

As Queen's Printer, all legislation, Command Papers and the official gazettes are published under the authorithy and superintendence of the Controller. Since 2000, all UK legislation is published simultaneously on the Internet and in print with both media carrying official status since October 2002.

HMSO also manages the licensing of Parliamentary copyright under the terms of an agreement with the UK Parliament.

All legislation and the Official Gazettes are currently published by *The Stationery Office Ltd. (TSO)*.

The London, Edinburgh and Belfast Gazettes are the Official Journals of the United Kingdom, Scotland and Northern Ireland. The London Gazette is the most up-to-date primary source for vital business information, which is published alongside important State and official news and announcements. It is published under superintendence of HMSO by The Stationery Office fives times a week, Monday to Friday. The Edinburgh and Belfast Gazettes fulfil similar functions in respect of Scotland and Northern Ireland. The Edinburgh Gazette is published on Tuesday and Friday and the Belfast Gazette every Friday.

Publication in the *London Gazette* has business and legal significance with the courts. It is published Monday to Friday.

The Gazette is of the utmost importance in a number of legal situations, with the court clock starting to tick only when the Gazette publishes an official announcement, and it is accepted as evidence in legal matters.

The Gazettes are the primary source of a wide range of official notices. These include: State (including Royal Household), Parliamentary and Ecclesiastical notices;

Implementation of Statutory Instruments;

Corporate and Personal insolvency notices, including petitions for Winding-up of companies and notices relating to meetings of creditors etc.;

Transport and planning notices;

Other public notices; and

Trustee Act notices.

In addition various supplements are published which include:

The Queen's Birthday and New Year's Honours Lists;

Other honours and awards;

Details of Premium Bond prize draws;

Armed Forces Promotions and Re-gradings; and

Companies information.

The Gazettes also include a number of information "Tracker" services that provide an easy to use update on all official resources in over 100 subject areas.

Monday: New Law Tracker summarises all developments in legislation.

Tuesday: Statistics and Standards Tracker references new developments from the Office of National Statistics and the British Standards Institute.

Wednesday: Parliamentary Tracker is a summary of debates, Committees and progress in the Houses of Commons and Lords.

Thursday: European Tracker provides a listing of all new drafts, documents, treaties and conventions from Europe.

Friday: Government Tracker is a run down of all recent Government publications.

Each day is supplemented with a listing of all the previous day's press releases and major website updates published by dozens of Governmental and official bodies.

All three Gazettes are, in addition to the printed edition, published on the Internet.

On behalf of *HMSO*, *TSO* are currently undertaking a major digitisation programme of the entire historical printed archive.

Access to the Internet versions of the gazettes is free, with the exception of financial services information which is available to subscribers only for the first days, after which it is available free.

Official paper copies of most items in the publication scheme of the *HMSO*-such as legislation-are liable to charge. These can be purchased from *TSO* outlets or the Parliamentary Bookshop or can be ordered from booksellers.

The *United Kingdom Official Publications Database (UKOP)* catalogues all parliamentary and statutory publications (including Acts and Statutory Instruments), and the publications of over 2500 official bodies including central government departments, the devolved administration, agencies, quangos and other bodies.

UKOP is now published by TSO, and has been recognised by Her Majesty's Stationery Office and the Cabinet Office as the official catalogue of UK official publications.

The Stationery Office Ltd. is a distributor of the publications of the Publications Office of the EU.

APPENDIX

We sent a letter with questions conserning the publication practice of the national publishing houses to all member states of the EU.

Below you will find our questions and answers drawn up in a synoptic table.

We have done this work to get an overview on the answers, but we have to emphasize that our questions were originally meant for writing a summary in text format on each official journal. Thus we apologize for the possible inaccuracies and deficiencies.

We have collected the material in several languages therefore language problems may also have given rise to misunderstanding.

LIST OF QUESTIONS

- 1. What legal act or legal acts regulate the publication of laws in your country?
- 2. What is the legal status and business form of your Publishing House? Which is the relevant Ministry?
- 3. What is the publication of the Official Journal financed from (budget resources, business venture, other)?
- **4.** Are laws and ministerial and main authority acts published together or separately? Which are these publications?
- 5. How are public procurement tenders published?
- 6. How are court decisions of public interest published?
- 7. Are parliamentary debate materials published? If so, by whom and how?
- 8. How are the official publications distributed (collection of subscriptions, invoicing, delivery)?
- 9. Do you also publish consolidated text of legal acts?
- 10. How do you receive the legal texts to be published?
- 11. What is the minimum period you receive the text before publication?
- 12. Do you have your own Printing House?
- 13. Where are the publications edited, proofread, structured etc. (at the Printing House or at the Publisher)?
- 14. Are you involved in second edition of the EU legislation in any form?

	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
Austria	Bundesgesetz -blattgesetz	Ltd., owner: Austrian Republic Federal Chancellery	State Budget from January, 2004	together	Official Journal	separate publications	Parliament	subscriptions, as single, Internet	no	electronic & printed version	1 week, sometimes 2-3 days	external Printing House	Publishing House	no
Belgium	"Programme Law" 2002	Department, M. of Justice	State Budget	partly together	Bulletin des Adjudications	Juridat portal	by the seven Parliaments	Internet	Justel	electronic & printed version	2 hours	only 3 paper copies	Publishing House	only summaries
Cyprus	Constitution Interpretation Law	Department, M. of Finance	State Budget	together	in the Official Journal	publications of the Supr. Court	separate volumes	subscriptions, as single	no	electronic & printed version	3 days	own Printing House	Office	no
Czeh Republic	Act No. 309/1999 Coll.	M. of Interior	from subscriptions, diff. State Budget	together	Commercial Bulletin	Coll. of Decisions and Standpoints	website of the Parliament, chamber presses	subscriptions, as single	yes	electronic version	max. 30 days	above 10 pages external Printing House	M. of Inter.	no
Denmark	Law on Lovtidende 1991	Directorate, M. of Justice	State Budget	"Ministerial- tidende"	-	Danish Weekly Law Reports	Rets- information	subscriptions, Internet	partly	electronic & printed version	1 week, urgent case: 1 day	external Printing House	M. of Justice	no
Estonia	Act on Riigi Teataja	State Inst., State Chancellery	State Budget	Appendix	Websites of State bodies	Decisions of the Supreme Court	website of the Parliament	Internet, subscriptions, as single	eRT	electronic & printed version	7-10 working days	own Printing Department	Publishing House	no
Finland	Act on the Statutes of Finland 188/2000	business company, owner: the State M. of Justice	business venture	together	Public Procurement Magazine	Publications of the Courts Edilex	Official Gazette	Internet, subscriptions	Edilex Service	electronic version	min. 3 days	external Printing House	authorities	no
France	Decree of 20 th February, 2004	Directorate, Prime Minister's Services	budget resources	separate bulletins	Bulletin of Public Procurement Tenders	Bulletin of Decisions of Criminal Court / of Civil Court	website of the Assemblée nationale, Sénat	Internet, subscriptions, as single	Legifrance	electronic & printed version	min. 1 day	own Printing House	the Printing House	distributor of the OJ of EU
Germany	Constitution	Ltd., resp. Federal M. of Justice	mainly from own revenues	in separate bulletins	Numerous bulletins + Internet	separate journals + Official Digests	Bundestags- und Bundes- ratsdruck- sachen	Internet, subscriptions, as single	no	electronic & printed version	2 days	external Printing House	partly by the Publishing House	distributor of the OJ of EU
Greece	Presidential Decree 188/1996. Act 301	Office, M. of Interior	State Budget	together	"Issue B"	Supreme Special Court Issue	by the Parliament	Internet, subscriptions, as single	-	electronic & printed version	min. 1 day	the Office	the Office	no
Hungary	Constitution, Act on Legislation No. 11/1987	Ltd., owner: State, resp. Prime Minister's Office	own revenues	partly together	Bulletin of Public Procurements	Repertory of Court decisions	website of the Parliament	subscriptions, as single, Internet	yes	electronic & printed version	min. 1 day	own Printing House	the Publishing House	directory of Com. legislation
Ireland	-	Office of Public Works	-	together	on the Internet	separate publications	website Oireachtas	subscriptions, as single, Internet	no	electronic & printed version	_	_	-	no
Italy	extensive regulation	Bureau No. 3, M. of Justice	State Budget	partly together	in the Official Journal	separate publications	Publishing House of the Parliament	subscriptions, as single, Internet	-	electronic & printed version	min. 2 days	external Printing House	the Printing House	the directory of Com. legislation

	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
Latvia	Law on Enforcement of Legal Acts	Ltd., owner State, M. of Justice	own revenues	together	on the website of Public Procurement Office	weekly supplement to the State Gazette	State Gazette	subscriptions, as single, Internet	no	electronic & printed version	2-3 days	external Printing House	Publishing House	no
Lithuania	Law on Procedure of Publication	Publishig House of the Parliament	State Budget	together Chapter VII.	-	the Decisions of the Const. Court	"Seimas Chronicle"	subscriptions, as sigle, Internet	yes	electronic & printed version	-	external Printing House	the Publishing House	no
Luxemburg	Constitution	Central Legislat. Office, Prime Minister's Office	State Budget	together	_	_	by the Parliament	Internet	yes	electronic & printed version	accord. to urgency	external Printing House	Publishing House + Ministries	no
Malta	Constitution, Interpretation Act	Department of Information	State Budget	together	in the Official Journal	Internet separate publications	by the Parliament	Internet, subscriptions, as single	no	electronic & printed version	various	Government Printing Press	Office of the Attorney Gen.	no
Poland	Act on the Publication of Legal Acts and Certain Provisions	Legislative Centre of the Government KPRM	State Budget, subscription fees	partly together	Gazette for Public Procurements	"Monitor Polski"	Parl. Journal Parl. Chronicle	Internet, subscriptions, as single	yes	electronic & printed version	12 hours	Service Centre for the Pres. Office of the Gov.	Publishing House	no
Portugal	Constitution	business company, owner: State	business venture	together Second Serie	-	Official Journal	"Diárió da Assembleia da República"	Internet, subscriptions, as single	no	electronic & printed version	5-8 working days	own Printing House	Publishing House	no
Slovakia	Act 1/1993 Z. z.	Department of Publications, M. of Justice	Editing is financed from State Budget	together	-	Internet	Internet	Internet, subscriptions, as single	yes	electronic & printed version	within 15 days	External Printing House	M. of Justice	no
Slovenia	Act & Reg. on the Official Gazette of the Rep. of Slov.	business company, majority owner: State	business venture	together	Websites of State bodies	Official Gazette	Website of the National Assemb.	Internet, subscriptions	yes	electronic & printed version	1-4 working days	external Printing House	Publishing House	no
Spain	Decree of the Presidency of the Gov. 1511/1986	Public organisation, M. of Presidency	own resources	yes	in the Official Journal	Section IV.	Separate publ. of BOE	Internet, subscriptions, as single	yes	electronic & printed version	1-3 days	own Printing House	Printing House	no
Sweden	Act of Publication	Office, M. of Justice	State Budget	separate bulletins	OJ of EU	separate publications	by the Parliament	Internet, subscriptions, as single	yes	electronic & printed version	1 week	external Printing House	Office	no
The Netherlands	Publication Law	Ltd., owner: the State	business venture	together	Saatscourant	Website Of Dutch Court Organis.	"Hande- lingen"	Internet, subscriptions, as single	-	electronic & printed version	min. 2 days	external Printing House	Publishing House	no
United Kingdom	-	Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Cabinet Office	State Budget	in separate publications	-	separate publications	Parliamentary Tracker	Internet, subscriptions, as single	-	-	-	The Stationery Office	-	European Tracker, distributor